Greater Clevefand 1240 West Gth Street
Regional Transit Authority Cleveland, Ohio 44113-1302
Phone: 216-566-5100

riderta.com

MEETING NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the following meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority will take place on Tuesday, February 16, 2021 in the Board Room of
the Authority, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, OH 44113 for consideration of the listed items
and such other items that may properly come before the Board and be acted upon.

In accordance with Sub. H.B. 404 of the 133 General Assembly, passed on November 19, 2020,
signed by the Governor of the State of Ohio on November 22, 2020 and the March 9, 2020 order
of the Governor of the State of Ohio declaring a public health emergency, this meeting wilt be live-
streamed on RTA's Facebook page (www.faceboolk com/rideRTA) for staff and members of the
public. Only Board members and required RTA staff will be allowed in the Board Room. The
meeting package will be posted on RTA's website at (www.riderta.com/board), on RTA's
Facebook page, and RTA's Twitter page.

9:00 AM. QOroganizationai, Services & Performance Monitoring Committes
¢ Quarterly Management Report — Review of 4th quarter 2020 results.

Audit, Safety Compliance And Rea!l Estate Committee

¢ [nternal Audit Quarterly Report - Review of 4th quarter 2020 audit work and
2021 Audit plan.

Board of Trustees — agenda attached.

(ﬁ_ Birdsong

Genera! Manager, Chief Executive Officer

ILB:tab
Attachment



AGENDA
RTA ORGANIZATIONAL, SERVICES & PERFORMANCE MONITORING COMMITTEE

Tuesday, February 16, 2021

Comrittee Members: Rev. Charles P. Lucas, Chair
Mr. Justin M. Bibb
Mayor Michasl P. Byrne
Mr. Leo Serrano
Mayor David E. Weiss

l. Rofl Call

8 Quarterly Management Report — Review of fourth quarter 2020 resuits,

Presenter:
= |ndia L, Birdsong, General Manager, CEQ

ti. Adjourn



AGENDA
RTA AUDIT, SAFETY COMPLIANCE AND REAL ESTATE COMMITTEE

Tuesday, February 16, 2021

Committee Maembers: Ms. Karen Gabriel Moss - Chair
Rev. Chartes P. Lucas - Vice Chair
Mr. Terence P. Joyce
Ms. Valarie J. McCall
Mayor David E. Weiss

i. Roli Call

Il. Internal Audit Quarterly Report — Review of fourth quarter 2020 audit work
and 2021 Audit Plan.

Presenter:;
» Tony Garofoli, Executive Director of Internal Audit

{i. Adjourn



AGENDA

RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
Tuesday, February 16, 2021

9:00 a.m.
(This meeting will commence after the committee meetings)
I.  Callto order
fl. Roll Calt
ilt. Certification regarding notice of meeting
V. Approval of the January 19, 2021 Board Meeting minutes

V. Public comments (2 minutes) on agenda items can be phoned in using the dial

meeting date:
Phone: 440-276-4600
VI. Board Governance Committee report

Vil. Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee report
+ Chair, Mr. Terence P. Joyce

Vill.  Qrganizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee report
s Chair. Rev. Charles P. Lucas

IX. Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committee report
» Chair. Karen Gabriel Moss

X, External and Stakehoider Relations and Advocacy Committee report
e Chair: Valarie J. McCall

Xt Community Advisory Committee (CAC)
» Board Liaison: Justin M. Bibb

Xl Ad Hoc Committee reports
* Ad Hoc Paratransit Committee —~ Rev. Charles P. Lucas, Chair
» Ad Hoc Technology Committee — Justin M. Bibb, Chair

Xill.  Introduction of new employees and announcement of promotions
XV, Introduction of resolutions:

A. 2021-9 — Expressing appreciation to the Honorabie Dennis M. Clough for his
service as a member of the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland



RTA Board of Trustees
February 16, 2021

Page 2

Regional Transit Authority and extending best wishes for many years to
come

2021-10 - Authorizing Contract No. 2020-149 with Michael Baker
International, Inc. for Project 62A — Engineering Services for the
Rehabilitation of the Track & Platform Bridges over W. 117" Street in an
amount not to exceed $490,211.00 (Engineering & Project Development
Department budget)

2021-11 = Authorizing Contract No. 2020-162 with Mott MacDonald, LLC for
Project 12F — Engineering Services for the 515 switch return to service in an
amount not to exceed $219,284.00 (RTA Development Fund, Engineering &
Project Development Department budget)

2021-12 — Authorizing Contract No. 2020-174 with Pir¢c Company
Landscaping and Snowplowing, LLC for Non-Rail and Healthiine
Landscaping Services in an amount not to exceed $792,995,98 for a period
of three years, and in amounts not to exceed $266,875.31 and $269,645.07
for each option year, respectively, for a total contract amount not to exceed
$1,329,616.36 (General Fund, Service Management Department budget)

2021-13 - Authorizing Contract No. 2020-183 with ADMJ Holdings LLC,
DBA Advance Door Co., for overhead door repair, as specified and as
required, for a three year hase period not to exceed $405,000.00, with two,
one-year options not to exceed $135,000.00 each, for a total contract
amount not to exceed $675,000.00 (General Fund, Service Management
Department budget)

2021-14 — Authorizing Contract No. 2020-196 with Railworks Track
Services, inc. for Project 52T - Light Rail Track Rehabilitation Buckeye-
Woodhill 1o Shaker Square Station, as specified and as required, in an
amount not to exceed $7,996,000.00 (RTA Development Fund, Engineering
& Project Development Department budget)

2021-15 — Authorizing an increase in the General Manager, Chief Executive
Officer’'s Change Order Authority under Contract 2019-001 — Project 52M
Rehabilitation of Tracks 10 and 13 at Tower City Station in an amount not to
exceed $250,000.00

2021-16 — Authorizing an agreement with the City of Shaker Heights for
tandscape maintenance and parking lot snow removal for a period of three
years in an amount not to exceed $824,305,78 (General Fund, Rail District
Department budget)

2021-17 — Approving the Authority's 2021 Public Transportation Agency
Safety Plan (PTASP)

2021-18 - Amending budget appropriations for the FY 2021 capital
improvement fund budget to provide for an increase of $124,500,000



RTA Board of Trustees
February 16, 2021
Page 3

K. 2021-19 - Amending appropriations for the current expenses and ather
expenditures for the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, as
adopted in Rasolution No. 2020-101 and to provide for a $15,000,000
transfer to the Development Fund and increasing appropriation to the
Reserve Fund by $28 000,000 for Rail Car Replacement Program

XV,  Interim Secretary-Treasurer's Report:

A. General Fund Revenue — status as of January, 2021 versus 2020 actuals
B. General Fund Revenue — status as of January, 2021 versus the 2021
budget

Sales & Use Tax Receipts Report budgeted during 2020, actual receipts
through February 2020

tnventory of Treasury Investments as of January 31, 2020

Debt Service Schedule and Status of Bond Retirement Fund (cash basis) as
of January 31, 2020

Summary of Investment Performance, Year to Date through January 31,
2020

Report on Investment Earnings (cash basis) as of January, 2020
Composition of Investment Portfolio as of January 31, 2020

Banking and Financial Relationships as of January 31, 2020

—I® m mo O

XVi  General Manager's Report
XVl President's Report

XVIHl. Old Business

XIX. New Business

XX. Public comments (2 minutes) on non-agenda items can be phoned in using the
dial in information or submitted via form at www.riderta. com/events by selecting
the meeting date;

Phone: 440-276-4600

XXI. Executive Session Requested - To consider the appointment, employment,
dismissal, discipline, promotion, demaotion, or compensation of a public employee
or official.

XXI.  The next reqgular Board meeting and Annual Meeting is scheduled for Tuesday,
March 23, 2021 in the Board Room of the Authority, Root-MeBride Building,
1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113. This meeting will be live-
streamed on RTA's Facebook page (www.facebook. com/rideRTA) for staff and
members of the public. Only Board members and required RTA staff will be
atlowed in the Board Room.

XX Adjournment



Minutes
RTA Board of Trustees Mesting
9:01 am., January 18, 2021
Present: Clough (Chair), Lucas (Vice Chair), Bibb, Byrne, Joyce, McCall, Moss, Pellot, Serrano, Weiss

Not present; None

Also Present: Becker, Benford, Birdsong, Bitto, Bumey, Caver, Coffey, Cottrell, Dangelo, Davidson, Fake,
Fields, Freitich, Garofoli, Gautam, Jehnson, Kirkland, Martin, Mifler, Mothes, Schipper, Sutula

Mayor Clough cafted the meeting to order at 3:01 a.m. The secretary called the roli and reported that nine
(9) board members ware present. Mr. Bibb joined after the roll call. This meeting was conducted by
teleconference for members of the Board in accordance with Sub. H.B. 404 of the 133" General Assembly,
passed on November 19, 2020, signed by the Governor of the State of Chio on Novembear 22, 2020 and
the March 9, 2020 order of the Governar of the State of Qhio declaring a public health emergency, this
meeting was live-streamed on RTA's Facebook page (www facebook. com/rideRTA) for staff and members
of the public.

The Secretary advised that notice of this meeting have been posted more than twenty-four hours in
advance of the meeting, that the usual notification has baen given the news media and other interested
persons, and that ail requirements of the Ohio Revised Code and Rules and Bylaws of this Board
regarding notice of meeting have baen complied with,

Minutes

Mayor Clough stated that the minutes from the December 15, 2020 Board Meeting had been previously
distributed and reviewed and asked whether there were any additions and/or corrections. There were no
corrections. The minutes were approved.

Public Comments - Agenda items (comments were submitted by form and phone)

1. Dominic Matthew — Claveland, OH - Saw the news about the recently launched Transit
Ambassadors program by CPT. These ambassadors are transit riders who will encourage
Cleveland residents in their neighborhoods to use transit and communicate any hardships faced by
them. Does the RTA propose any assistance in outreach or aiding this grassroots program, given
the urgent need to restore public trust in using transit?

2. Chrisg in — Cleveland, OH - Please install mask dispensers on board buses and trains. During
this pandemic, masking is extremely important when sociat distancing is not possible, and
providing masks on board buses and trains will heip any person who might not otherwise have
one. RTA has taken some steps to mitigate transmission of the virus on its vehicles, but not
enough. RTA does mandate wearing masks but does not enforce the mandate and not all riders
follow it. RTA installed vinyl sheeting to separate operators from riders, but many of these are now
broken and many were never used, RTA promised to install hard plastic barriers to separate rider
and operator but they have not been installed. RTA will hire 18 cleaners this year to disinfect buses
and trains even though we now know the disease spreads more through the air than through
surface contact. It is not clear what, if anything, RTA has done to improve ventilation on buses and
trains.

We know the more transmissible UK variant of COVID-19 is likely to become the dominant strain in
the US by March. This makes it all the more important for RTA do everything it can to protect the
riding public as well as its own staff. And you can afford it. RTA ended 2020 with nearly $140



RTA Board of Trustees
January 19, 2021
Page 2 of 7

million in reserves. The second stimulus bill gave you something like $30 miltion mare and you will
receive even more than that under the new president's announced plans.
Please install mask dispensers on board buses and trains.

3. Rev. Pam M. Pinkney ~ Cleveland, OH —~ She congratulated the retirees. She is concerned about
Resolution No. 2021-2 concerning Tower City. She asked if tha smoking ban included in this
project. She supports Cook Paving in Resolution No, 2021-3, She does not like the plastic seats
on the bus in Rasolution No. 2021-4. She congratulated the retirees.

Ms. Birdsong added that mask are being handed out to riders. Mask are required on RTA buses and
trains. Signage is on the front of the bus and on the website. Operators are not encouraged to engage
people not wearing mask to avoid altercations. If thers is someone that is a nuisance to customers, the
operator can contact Transit Police for assistance. The hard plastic barriers are being procured. They will
be received in the next several weeks. Rev. Lucas asked if the barriers will be placed on paratransit
vehicles. Dr. Caver said they are looking at what can be put on paratransit buses.

Committee Reports

There were no committee repors.

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)
There was no CAC repor.

Ad Hoc Committee Reparis

There was no Ad Hoe Committee repor.

introduction of New Employees/Promotions

New Hires:
1. Sheila Miller, Information Technology Engineer
2. Ann Marie Prebish, Talent Acquisition Business Partner
3. Jenai Payton, Talent Acquisition Business Pariner
4, Marketa Hill, Assistant Contract Administrator

Promotions:
1. Quennel Marshall, Supervisar Pawer and Way
2. Enjoli Anderson, Dispatcher
3. Pedro Colon, Supervisor Signals
4. Conor Miller, ITS Specialist

Mavyor Clough congratulated the new hires and promotions.

Introduction of Resolutions

A, 2021-1 - Expressing congratulations to the employees of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority who retired during the fourth quarter of 2020, the adoption of which was
moved by Mr. Serrano, seconded by Rev. Lucas and approved by unanimous vole.

Mr. Fields said there were 18 retirees. Mayor Clough thanked them for their service,
B,  2021-2 ~ Authorizing an increase to Contract Na. 2018-070 with E.L. Robinson Engineering

for Project 52N Engineering Services for the Towear City East Portal Rehabilitation in the
amount of $220,459.54 for a total contract amount of $989,942 01 and reinstating the General



RTA Board of Trustees

January 19,

Page 3 of 7

2021

Manager, Chisf Executive Officer’s change order signing authority in its entirety (RTA
Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget), the adoption of
which was moved by Mr. Serrano, seconded by Ms. Pellot and approved by unanimous vote.

A number of the resolutions have gone through committee.

2021-3 — Authorizing Contract No. 2020-182 with Cook Paving & Construction, Co., Inc. for
Project 18.71 - GCRTA Salt Storage Facilities, in an amount not to exceed $275,000.00 (RTA
Development Fund, Enginesring & Project Development Department budget), the adoption of
which was moved by Mr. Joyce, seconded by Ms. Moss and approved by unanimous vote.

This is for a sait facility, but the procurement for salt wilf follow the normal practica. This is our
first step towards housing our salt so we can be less depended on previous practices and be
mare proactive for the winter,

2021-4 — Authorizing Contract No. 2020-188 with the Aftermarket Parts Company, LLC for the
furnishing of Gemini Plastic Seat Inserts (back & bottom-with drain holes), as specified and as
required, for a period of one (1) year in an amount not to exceed $385,078.32 (General Fund,
Flest Management Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Chief McCall,
seconded by Mr. Sarrano and approved by unanimous vote.

Ms. Birdsong said this would bring us up to date with the plastic seating for all Gililg vehicles
in the fleet. The plastic seating is easier to maintain and clean. We are moving away from the
fabric seating, which is harder to clean. We are looking to have the entire fleet fitted with
plastic. Paratransit has vinyl because of the longer seat ride and fabrication of the vehicies.
There are variations within plastic seating to assist with sliding. That has been reviewed as
well as drainage.

2021-5 — Authorizing Contract No. 2021-001 with Oracle Corporation to provide Oracle
Software Maintenance and Support Services for a period of one year in an amount not to
exceed $388,132.98 (General Fund, Information Technology Department budget), the
adoption of which was moved by Mr. Serrano, seconded by Ms. Pellot and approved by
unanimous vote.

2021-6 ~ Authorizing Contract No. 2021-002 with Ultramain Systems, inc. to provide software
maintenance for the Authority's CITME Maintenance and Materials Management Systermn for a
period of one year in an amount not to exceed $373,093.80, with two annual renewals in
amounts not to exceed $3B6,152.09 and $399,667 .41, respectively, for a total contract
amount not to exceed $1,158,913.30, (General Fund, Information Technology Department
budget), the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Mass, seconded by Mr. Joyce and
approved by unanimous vote,

2021-7 — Authorizing a Memorandum of Understanding with the Cuyahoga County Board of
Health for implementation of the Baby on Board Program, the adoption of which was moved
by Rev. Lucas, seconded by Mayor Byrne and approved by unanimous vote.

Angela Newman White, the grant supervisor at the Cuyahoga County Board of Health was on
the line. They are excited to enter into a MOU with RTA to support transportation needs of
families in three targeted zip codes with the overall goat to improve birth and health outcomes.
They are confident that through their partnership they will be able to disseminate the
resources and provide documentation and reporting. Ms. Moss asked if this is a pilot program
since it only targets three zip codes as opposed to other people who may need the service,
who are not in those zip codes. Ms. Birdsong said this is a pilot. They have determined the
locations in concert the County. it is important for RTA to be invested in the community and
the future of Cleveland and Ohio wide residents. Ms. Feke added that this is a pilot. The zip



RTA Board of Trustees
January 19, 2021
Page 4 of 7

codes and census tracks have the highest infant mortatity in the area. Itis a two-year
program. [t will provide transportation for young women to get to the doctor and help
decrease immortality rates in this area.

M. 2021-8 - Authorizing the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority to grant a permanent
right-of-way and easement to the East Ohio Gas Company {("Dominion™} to access and
maintain the measuring and regulating station on Cuyahoga County Permanent Parcel
Number 671-07-002, incated at the Hayden Garage in East Cleveland, Ohio for the price of
$10,000.00, the adaption of which was moved by Mr. Joyce, seconded by Ms. Moss and
approved by unanimous vote.

interim Secretary-Treasurer's Report

Dr. Caver gave the report. The unemployment rate for the nation was 6.7% in December 2020. The
county and state numbers have not come out, but we have traditionally been higher than the country.
Nationally, 9.8 million jobs have besan lost since Feb. 2020. They have been in industries that affect our
community. [t is predicted that the second half of 2020 may get batter as the vaccine is disseminated
throughout the country. February-April, 22 million jobs were lost. Over half have been re-gained by
December 2020, but thera are same shifts that will affect RTA. One is that in December 2020, nearly 25%
of all employees were able to telework. This will present challenges for transit agencies and city centers
related to taxing and economic activity. Another aspect is that government employment is down
nationwide by 45,000 jobs. Government jobs are important because they are some of the largest
employers in the community. About one and six restaurants have closed. This is moneay that will leave the
community and jobs. Leisure and hospitality had the largest loss in jobs. Other job categories are trending

up.

Ridership throughout the Pandemic was down about 54%. We have kept that at 50-55% down throughout
the recovery. Passenger fares has a direct impact on revenue. Revenue compared to 2019, was down
by §7%. Sales tax has been resilient. it has not taken the negative drop expected. The unemployment
supplemental payments have helped. The last stimulus package and the next one will help keep cash in
people’s hand. The technicals do not suggest that given a 7% national unemployment rate that sales tax
will be robust going forward. Online sales has had a fremendous increase in sales tax. Motor vehicles and

aicohol sales have been steady.

Genearal Manager, Chief Executive Officer Repart

Ms. Birdsong gave the presentation. In 2020, we received about $112 million through the CARES Act. All
of that funding was drown down by October 2020. The money was used to offset operating expenses and
to keep us afloat. We did not incur any layoffs or terminations as a result of COVID, We are currently
operating at 93% of normal service levels. For 2021, the COVID relief package is expected to be able to
provide us with $50-560 million ar better. This is an estimate. We have not received the final time tabie to
determine what finances will iook like through the 27 round of the Coronavirus Response & Relief
Supplemental Appropriations Act (CRRSAA) for 2021, We have been advised that there is a total of $14
billion awarded to transit agencies in the nation. The Cleveland Urbanized Area (CUZA) is expected to be
awarded about $74.3 million. This includes Cleveland RTA, Medina, Laketran, Akron, Metro FARTA and
Geauga County. The Board and public will be updated on the expected funds.

There has been a lot of conversation and media coverage regarding the COVID-19 vaccine and who can
take it and when. We have been in conversation with frontine employees and finding what the City of
Cleveland is undergoing regarding vacecination and when it will be our turn to get the vaccine. In order to
prepare for this information, all RTA employees were surveyed to gauge their interest in taking the vaccine
to have data to respond regarding demand for RTA, All responses will remain anonymous. There will be a
two-week turnaround for responses that should be received by the end of the month. Employees will be
notified on where to get the vaccine once it is available. They are not mandating that all employees take



RTA Board of Trustees
January 19, 2021
Page 5 of 7

the vaccine. However, they will continue to update that progress as the Pandemic continues. Rev. Lucas
said that he would receive the vaccine as a member of the leadership of the Board.

Ohio Loves Transit is traditionally hosted annually in Columbus. [t will be a virtual event this year far
format and looking through the different ways to communicate through the transit industry with legislators
and staff to be able to stand behind transit and continue to advocate for funding and continuous of service.
RTA will attend virtuaily. OLT cookies were placed at the Board desk that will be sent to our legislatures as
a thank you and reminder that we are an essential service. The purpose of Ohio Loves Transit is to
educate and inform passengers, stakeholders and community leaders about the importance of public
transportation. The goals are to maet in person or virtually to explain our heed for support whether its
engagement regarding eligibility for grants and funding or whether it is general advocates for safe passage
for riders and operators through COVID,

Due to reconstruction on track 13 on Tower City, Red Line riders will board and exit at a different location
through spring of this year. The Blue and Green Line is not affected. Check the website for updates.
Mayar Paul A. Keomar of Bay Village will join the Board in March. He was appointed by the Cuyahoga
County Mayors and Managers City Managers Assaciation. He will take the seat of current RTA Board
President, Mayor Dennis M. Clough of Westlake. Mayor Clough welcomed the mayaor. He has worked
with him over the years through the Council of Governments in the Westshore area. He has a financial
background that will be of assistance and wili be a great addition to the Board. Mayor Koomar said he

would be happy to serve.

All Board members are reminded to get their audif feedback to Anthony Garofoli for the 2021 internat Audit
program by this Friday. He and his staff is finalizing an authority-wide risk assessment to formulate the
audit plan for your review and approval next month, Transit Police body cameras and portable radios have
arrived. We have a kick off meeting scheduled and we are ahead of schedule for this project. We will
come back to the Board on policies and procedures and how to distribute the cameras. The American
Public Transportation Association (APTA) requested to have the Rail Conference confirmed here in
Cleveland in June. That will be on the heels of the NFL Draft planned for Cleveland in April/May. The
redec was cancelied, but the conference will go forward. Interviews for Deputy General Manager positions
and the Chief of Police are ungoing. There should be updates within the next quarter for all three
pasitions. The Ad Hoc Technotogy Committee will meet Feb. 4 at 5 p.m. in the Main Office or virtually for
those who would like to attend. Rev. Lucas askad when the hiring wouid be completed. She said they are
wrapping up the DGM interviews. They expect to select a candidate for one DGM position by the end of
this month and the end of next month for the other DGM. The Chief of Police position should be selected
by the first of March.

President's Report

Mayar Clough reminded the Board that the Nominating Committee for the President and Vice President
neads one more volunteer from the Board, namely a County appointee since someone from the City and
Mayors has been identified. The committee member should not be interested in running for office. Please
notify Theresa if you are interested. Alf interested in running for office should send a letter to the
committee by the end of February so the Board can select the officers at the March Board Meeting.

Public comments on non-agenda items

Comments were received via form and by dial in. Comments were limited to two minutes,

1. Rev. Pamela M. Pinkney — Cleveland, OH — She hasn't received a returned phone call from Mayor
Jackson. She opposes the plastic seats in Resolution 2021-4. She is concemed about the
violence taking place locally and globally. She is disappointed in Ms. Birdsong’s work., She
requested a meeting. She has some concemns she wants to discuss with her.




RTA Board of Trustees
January 19, 2021
Page 6 of 7

2.

Rico Dancy — Cleveland, OH - He is a Board member at WMATA in D.C. They have a Video
Remote interpreter (VR1) app on every phone of the police department. He asked if the Board is
considering an app to assist Transit Police in communicating with the deaf community.

Dr. Caver will provide an update with what his staff came up with concerning this app.

Ms. Birdsong said a few apps have come to staff's attention that have been forwardad to Transit Police.
She said she would reach out to Rev, Pinkney to discuss her concems.

3.

4,

Donte Taylor - He applauded RTA on their time and effort on the paratransit and big bus service.

Bob Ross - Thank you Mayor Clough for your service to GCRTA. Welcome to Mayor Koomar of
Bay Village. Perhaps an expansion of the Board would be appropriate in these challenging times, |
would really like to see a member that uses RTA extensively. It's time to give the Riders some
representation. 2021 is the time, . .lef's do it!

No Name - RTA is hiring 18 mare vehicle cleaners, and has been focusing on cleaning during the
COVID-19 pandemic, even though we have learned that the disease commonly spreads through
the air instead of through touching surfaces. While we are waiting for vaccine rollout, new variant
strains of the virus may become dominant like in the UK. We need to stay vigilant in the fight
against COVID-19, To better fight COVID, it's mora important to: improve ventilation on buses and
trains. Install hard barriers for drivers as promised (most buses still have plastic curtains installed,
but many of these have broken or fallen). Distribute masks on all vehicies, like Delroit and
Laketran. Masks currently available at Customer Service at Tower City are not accessible to most
riders. (You need a mask to walk into Tower City in the first place!)

Gail Long — Shaker Heights, OH - Happy New Year to Board Members and Staff of RTA!

| urge you to make the following adjustments and/or additions in RTA's COVID-19 protocol. One,
please install permanent (not plastic curtains) barriers in all buses and trains and two, make masks
availahle to all iders who enter RTA vehicles - trains, buses and vans throughout the setvice
region. RTA has received pandemic funds to be used for just these purposes.

Luke Robkertson -To better fight COVID in the RTA and make ridars safe we, we need to do more
than cleaning the buses more. it's more important to: 1. Improve ventilation on buses and trains.
2. Install hard barriers for drivers as promised (most huses still have plastic curtains installed, but
many of these have broken or fallen) 3. Distribute masks on all vehicles, like Detrolt and Laketran,
Masks currently available at Customer Service at Tower City are not accessible to most riders,
(You need a mask to walk into Tower City in the first place!).

Lagueta Worley-Bell - Cleveland, OH - It's very hard to seriously believe RTA couldn't find a fiscal
agent to waiver the cost of fare of all transit riders. | am scratching & scraping to ride every month. |
know yeah the grant is only support the drivers and maintenance of the vehicles. But what about
the riders?

Lynn Solomon - Cleveland, OH - Please install mask dispensers on buses so that those riders
who don't have a mask can grab one and put it on as soon as they get on the bus. The virus is
contracted most easily thru the air we hreathe. By that rider pulting on a mask he is protecting all
the other riders on the bus (who have masks on) and the bus driver, Having masks available at
RTA in Tower City is not helpful in getting a mask to someone who is boarding a bus. Please use
some of the money you are receiving from the government bacause of the pandemic for this
pandemic-related issue. Thank you.

Retated to the question on expanding the Board, Ms. Benford said the RTA Board appeintments are set up
by the formation of the Board by agreement between the County, the City of Cleveland and Mayors &
Managers in the County. Mayor Clough said that the RTA Board has no power on expanding the Board,
The three agencies would have to do that.



RTA Board of Trustees
January 19, 2021
Page 7 of 7

Executive Session Requested

There will not be any action taken after the Executive Session other than to adjourn the meeting.

10:03 a.m. - Mayor Clough asked for a motion to go into Executive Session to consider the appointment,
employment, dismissal, disciplineg, promotion, demotion, or compensation of a public employee or official,
It was moved by Rev. Lucas, seconded by Mr. Bibb. There was ten (10) ayes and none opposed.

10:31 a.m. — It was moved by Rev. Lucas, seconded by Mr. Serrano to come out of Executive Session,
There were ten (10) ayes and none opposed.

Upcoming Meetings

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, February 16, 2021 in the Board Room of the
Authority, Root-McBride Building, and 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113, This meeting will
be live streamed on RTA's Facebook page for staff and members of the public at

www.facebook comfriderta Only Board members and required RTA staff will be allowed in the Board

Room.

This meeting was adjouned at 10:31 a.m.

FPresident

Attest: M ¢ {DA -\D.

Interim Secretary-Treasurer




RESOLUTION NO. 2021-9

EXPRESSING APPRECIATION TO THE HONORABLE DENNIS M. CLOUGH
FOR HIS SERVICE AS A MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY AND
EXTENDING BEST WISHES FOR MANY YEARS TO COME

WHEREAS, the Honorable Dennis M. Clough has served as a member of the Board of
Trustees of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority for 21 years, having been selected
for appointment by the Cuyahoga County Mayors and City Managers Association in 1999; and

WHEREAS, the Honorable Dennis M. Clough has been a faithful and dedicated Board
Trustee during his tenure, serving as Vice President of the Board of Trustees from 2011 to 2018
and President of the Board of Trustees since 2018; and

WHEREAS, during his tenure as a member of the Board of Trustees, the Honorable
Dennis M. Clough was a strong advocate for public transit and demonstrated his unwavering
commitment to local, regional and state collaboration in order to achieve the best possible
outcomes for all; and

WHEREAS, the Honorable Dennis M. Clough has served with distinction as the Mayor of
the City of Westlake since 1986; and

WHEREAS, the Honorable Dennis M. Clough has performed with great diligence, insight
and passion in serving the citizens of Cuyahoga County.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the most sincere appreciation of the Board of Trustees is hereby
extended to the Honorable Dennis M. Clough for his dedicated service to the Authority and his
community.

Section 2. That the members of the Board of Trustees express their gratitude to the
Honorable Dennis M. Clough for his diligence in the performance of his responsibilities to the
residents of Cuyahoga County.

Section 3. That the Board of Trustees offers its best wishes to the Honorable Dennis M.
Clough and hopes he will enjoy many more years of successful public service.

Section 4. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: February 16, 2021

Vice-President

Attest:

tnterim Secretary-Treasurer



';ggg 2 Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
07-03-97 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: PROJECT 62A ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE 2021-10
REHABILITATION OF THE TRACK & PLATFORM Date:
BRIDGES OVER W. 117™ STREET February 11, 2021
Initiator;
VENDOR: MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL, INC. Engineering & Project
Development
AMOUNT: NTE $490,211.00

ACTION REQUEST,
® Approval {1 Review/Comment O Information Only {1 Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Authority to enter info a contract for Project
62A - Engineering Services for the Rehabilitation of the Track & Platform Briclges over W.
117" Street.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The West 117" Street Bridges carry the two Red Line
heavy rail east and west lines flanking the center station platform. The bridges were
constructed in 1853 with the last major rehabilitation work performed in 1989. The nearly 70
year old bridges have been deteriorated by freeze-thaw cycle damage, steel corrosion, and
water intrusion.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Request for Proposals (‘RFF") was posted on the
GCRTA Procurement web site and advertised in the local newspapers. Thirty-eight interested
parties, including potential subcontractors, downioaded the solicitation package. These services
were solicited through a competitive negotiated procurement, utilizing the Brooks Act
Procedures. Under this process, the Authority's evaluation panel first selects the most
technically qualified firm, solicits a pricing proposat from that firm, and negotiates price only with
that firm. Should the Authority determing that an agreement could not be reached with the most
qualified firm, it may reject that proposal and repeat the process with the next most qualified
firm, in this instance, negotiations were held with Michae! Baker International, Inc., the first
ranked firm, and an acceptable price was reached.

Michael Baker International, Inc. has successfully completed projects for the GCRTA, DART
{Dallas, TX), the LA Metro, and ODOT, among athers.

The Procurement Department performed a cost analysis and determined the proposed pricing
from Michael Baker International, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $490,211.00 to be fair and
reasonable to the Authority. This negotiated price is 8.9% above the Engineer's Estimate.

4.0  AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have
been met. A 9% DBE goal was established for this procurement. Michael Baker
international, Inc. has committed to achieving the DBE participation goal through the
utifization of 2LMN, Ine. (Subcontinent Asian-owned) in the amount of $80,825.00 and Van
Auken Akins Architects, LLC (Female-owned) in the amount of $70,400.00 for a total of
$151,225.00 or 26%,

5.0 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shall be payable through the RTA Development
Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to
100% Local Funds and Capital Grant, OH-2018-024, in an amount not to exceed
$490,211.00 ($392,168.80 in federal funds which represents 80% of the total cost).




Staff Summary & Comments

Engineering Services for the Rehab of Track & Platform Bridges over W. 117" 5t. 2021-10

Page 2

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer, Rejection of this offer will allow for continued
deterioration of this asset.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the
February 2, 2021 Operational Planning and Infrastructure Committee meeting. Htis
recommended that the offer from Michael Baker International, Inc. be accepted and the
resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a
contract.

9.0  ATTACHMENTS. None.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance
with the Procurement requirements.

- — -
m e -
L /‘?’%@m}”
wai ) i e

Generd! Manager, Chief Executive.Bfficer




RESOLUTION NO. 2021-10

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2020-149 WITH MICHAEL. BAKER
INTERNATIONAL, INC. FOR PROJECT 62A — ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR
THE REHABILITATION OF THE TRACK & PLATFORM BRIDGES OVER W.
117™ STREET IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $490,211.00
(ENGINEERING & PROJECT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, The Authority requires task order inspection services for construction
inspection and construction management support services; and

WHEREAS, the proposal of Michael Baker International, tnc., with an office located at
1111 Superior Avenue, Cleveland, Ohio 44114, to perform said services was received on
Qctober 22, 2020 in response to a competitive solicitation; and

WHEREAS, after negotiations, Michael Baker International, Inc. has agreed to perform
the required services in an amount not to exceed $490,211.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer of Michael
Baker International, Inc. to be the most advantageous to the Authority, and recommends
acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, QOhio:

Section 1. That the negotiated offer of Michael Baker International, Inc. to provide
various task order services under Project 62A — Engineering Services for the Rehabilitation of
the Track & Platform Bridges over W. 117% Streat be and the same is hereby accepted,

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Michael Baker International, inc. for the
performance of said services,

Section 3. That said contract shall be payable from the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to 100% Local
Funds and Capital Grant OH-2018-024, in an amount not to exceed $480,211.00 ($382,168.80
in federal funds which represents 80% of the total cost).

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, if any; the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance requirements
and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Michael Baker international, Inc. will attempt to exceed the 9% minimum DBE goal
assigned to this procurement,

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: February 186, 2021
President

Attest;

Interim Secretary-Treasurer



Form
100-226
07-03-97

Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resojution No.:
CONTRACT: PROJECT 12F ~ ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE | 2021-11

515 SWITCH RETURN TO SERVICE Date:
February 11, 2021

VENDOR: MOTT MACDONALD, LLC Initiator:

Engineering & Project

AMOUNT:  NTE $219,284.00 Development

ACTION REQUEST:
b Approval (] Review/Comment {1 Information Only {1 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Authority to enter into a contract for
Engineering Services for the 515 Switch Return to Service.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: This project will provide professional engineering services
for the design and technical support services for the return to service of the 515 switch
located at the Brook Park Rail Yard. The purpose of this project is to place this switch back
in service so new trains can be commissioned at the rail shop. This switch has not bean
operational due to the lack of need until now. Work will include design of all signal related
items required to place the switch back in service, block design, design of new signals,
confirmation of the reuse of the switch machine, signal foundations, cable, test loop cab
signal, and snow meiters.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Request for Proposals (*RFP") was posted on the
GCRTA Procurement web site and advertisad in the local newspapers. Twelve interested
parties, including potential subcontractors, downloaded the solicitation package. These services
were solicited through a competitive negotiated procurement, utilizing the Brooks Act
procedures. Under this process, the Authority's evaluation panel first selects the most
technically qualified firm, solicits a pricing propesal from that firm, and negotiates price only with
that firm. Should the Authority determine that an agreement could not be reached with the most
qualified firm, it may reject that proposal and repeat the process with the next most qualified
firm. In this instance, negotiations were held with Mott MacDonald, LLC, the first ranked firm,
and an acceptable price was reached.

Mott MacDonald, LLC has successfully completed projects for the GCRTA, Chicago Transit
Authority, Port Authority of Allegheny County and WMATA, among others.

The Procurement Department performed a cost analysis and determined the proposed pricing
to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have
been met. A 4% DBE goal was established for this procurement. Mott MacDonald, LL.C has
committed to achieving the DBE participation goal through the utilization of Raul V. Bravo &
Assoc. (Hispanic-ownad) in the amount of $7 569.00 and GeoTrans (Hispanic-owned) in the
amount of $31,465.00 for a total of $39,034.00 or 17.8%.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This contract shall be payable from the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to Capital
Grant OH-2019-007 (OTP3 Red Line West Track Rehab) and 100% Local funds, in an
amount not to exceed $219,284.00 ($175,427.20 in federal funds which represents 80% of

total cost).




Staff Summary & Comments
Engineering Services for the 515 Switch Return to Service 2021-11
Page 2

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Rejectthis offer. Rejection of this offer would leave the Authority without
the technical expertise of a professional signal engineering firm to supplement the resources
of the Authority's Engineering and Project Managemeant Division for the return of the 515
switch to service at the Brook Park Rail Yard,

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the
February 2, 2021 Operational Planning and Infrastructure Committee meeting. It is
recommended that the offer frem Mott MacDonald, LIL.C be accepted and the resolution
passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance
with the Procurement requirements.

7 B~

,M" P

Gen*%ré‘l Manager, Chief Executive Officer”




RESOLUTION NO. 2021-11

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2020-162 WITH MOTT MACDONALD, LLC
FOR PROJECT 12F ~ ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE 515 SWITCH
RETURN TO SERVICE IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $219,284,00 (RTA
DEVELOPMENT FUND, ENGINEERING & PROJECT DEVELOPMENT
DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority requires signal engineering design and technical support
services for the 515 Switch Return to Service, in order to commission new rail cars at the Brook
Park Rail Yard:; and

WHEREAS, the Authority also has a need for a consultant to design the specifications to
put the switch back into service and provide bid documents & support, construction duration
estimates and construction support services; and.

WHEREAS, the proposal of Mott MacDonald, LLC, with an office located at 18013
Cleveland Parkway Drive, Suite 200, Cleveland, Ohio 44135, to perform said services was
received on November 10, 2020 in response to a competitive solicitation; and

WHEREAS, after negotiations, Mott MacDonald, LLC has agreed to perform the required
servicas for an amount not to exceed $219,284.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer of Mott
MacDonald, LLC to be the most advantageous to the Authaority and recommends acceptance
thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the negotiated offer of Mott MacDonald, LLC to provide signal
engineering design and technical support services under Project 12F — Engineering Services for
the 515 Switch Return to Service, be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2, That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Mott MacDonald, LLC for the performance
of said services,

Section 3. That said contract shall be payable from the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to Capital
Grant OH-2018-007 (OTP3 Red Line West Track Rehab) and 100% Local funds, in an amount
not to exceed $219,284.00 ($175,427.20 in federal funds which represents 80% of totat cost).

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, if any; the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance requirements
and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Mott MacDonald, LLC will attempt to exceed the 4% minimum DBE goal assigned
to this procurement.



Resolution No. 2021-11
Page 2

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: February 16, 2021

President

Attest;

imterim Secretary-Treasurer



f;‘;f{';;_‘qof'm Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
o STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:

CONTRACT: NON-RAIL AND HEALTHLINE LANDSCAPING 2021-12
SERVICES Date:

VENDOR:  PIRC COMPANY LANDSCAPING AND February 11, 2021
SNOWPLOWING, LLC Initiator:

AMOUNT:  NTE $792,995.98 FOR A PERIOD OF THREE YEARS, | Service Management

Department

AND IN AMOUNTS NTE $266,975.31 AND $269,645.07
FOR EACH OPTION YEAR, RESPECTIVELY, FOR A
TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT NTE $1,325,616.36

ACTION REQUEST:
# Approval [I Review/Comment (I Information Only (1 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Authority to enter into a contract to provide Non-
Rail and HealthLine Landscaping Services for a period of three years with two, one-year options.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: Landscaping is an integral aspect of maintaining the public
image of the Authority, and it is required for compliance with laws and regulations. The Authority
does not have the equipment or expertise to properly maintain the non-rail and HealthLine
landscaping sites, therefore a landscaping contractor is necessary to maintain the high standards
established by alf of the key staksholders. The HeaithLine and non-rail landscaping sites include
weekly turf and bed maintenance, spring and fall cleanups, muiching, tree, bush, and shrub
pruning, weed controf, and bio-retention basin maintenance. The HealthLine landscaping sites
spectfically includes semi-annual flower planting with watering, as needed, and winter plant
protection.

FROCUREMENT BACKGRQUND: The Request for Froposals (‘RFP") was posted on the
procurement website and advertised in the local newspapers. Two (2) proposals were received
on December 8, 2020 in response to this solicitation. After evaluation by a panel of Authority
employees in accordance with established Procurement Department policies and procedures,
and, after negotiations, the proposal of Pirc Company Landscaping and Snowplowing, LLC to
provide Non-Rail and HealthLine Landscaping Services was selected as the most advantageous
to the Authaority.

A cost analysis was performed and the Procurement Department has determined the
negotiated price to be fair and reasonable to the Autherity.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: Ali Affirmative Action requirements have
been met. A 20% DBE goal was established for this procurement. Pirc Company
Landscaping and Snowplowing, LLC has committed to achieving the DBE participation
geal through the utilization of Top Design Landscaping (African American male-owned)
for a total of $269,810.00 or 20%,

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shall be payable through the General Fund,
Service Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $792 995,08 for a
period of three years, and in amounts not to exceed $266,975.31 and $269,645.07 for
each option year, respectively, for a total contract amount not to exceed $1,329,616.36.
This is 3% below the cost estimate.



Staff Summary & Comments
Non-Rail and HealthLine Landscaping Sarvicas 2021-12

Page 2

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer will result in a detay of necessary
landscaping services at numerous Authority properties, resulting in a poor public perception and
the risk of being fined by municipalities for not maintaining our property.

B0 RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at
the February 2, 2021 Qrganizational, Services & Perfarmance Monitoring Committee
meeting. it is recommended that the offer of Pirc Company Landscaping and
Snowplowing, LLC be accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General
Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

80 ATTACHMENT: Noane.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availability
of funds, legal form and conformance with the Procurement

regquirements,

‘-"}
"

- o - -,

oy i . W o
i oy et L i
General Manager, Chief Executive Officef”




RESOLUTION NO. 2021-12

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2020-174 WITH PIRC COMPANY
LANDSCAPING AND SNOWPLOWING, LLC FOR NON-RAIL AND
HEALTHLINE LANDSCAPING SERVICES IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$792,995.98 FOR A PERIOD OF THREE YEARS, AND IN AMOUNTS NOT TO
EXCEED $266,975.31 AND $269,645.07 FOR EACH OPTION YEAR,
RESPECTIVELY, FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$1,329,616.36 (GENERAL FUND, SERVICE MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT

BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority deems it necessary to acquire a landscape contractor to
maintain the landscaping on the non-rail and HealthLine properties; and

WHEREAS, the proposal of Pirc Company Landscaping and Snowplowing, LLC, located
at 30202 Lakeland Boulevard, Wickliffe, Ohio, was received an December 8, 2020; and

WHEREAS, after negotiations, the proposal of Pirc Company Landscaping and
Snowplowing, LLC to provide Non-Rail and HealthLine Landscaping Services in an amount not
to exceed $792,995.98 for a period of three years, and in amounts not to exceed $266,975.31
and $269,645.07 for each option year, respectively, for a total contract amount not to exceed
$1,329,616.36, was determined to be most advantageous to the Authority, cost and other
factions considered; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer, deems the offer of Pirc
Company Landscaping and Snowplowing, LLC, in the best interest of the Authority and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer of Pirc Company Landscaping and Snowplowing, LLC, as
negotiated, to provide Non-Rail and HealthLine Landscaping Services be and the same is
hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Pirc Company Landscaping and
Snowplowing, LLC, to provide Non-Rail and Healthl.ine Landscaping Services for a period of
three years with two, one-year aptions, and is further authorized to exercise the option years.

Section 3. This procurement shall be payable through the General Fund, Service
Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $792,995.98 for a period of three
years, and in amounts not to exceed $266,975.31 and $269,645.07 for each option year,
respectively, for a total contract amount not to exceed $1,329,616.36.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and
Addenda, thereto, if any, the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding
and insurance requirements; and all applicable laws relating to the contractual obligations of the
Authority,



Resolution No. 2021-12
Page 2

Section 5. That the Greater Claveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Pirc Company Landscaping and Snowplowing, LLC will attempt to exceed the 20%
minimum DBE goal assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: February 16, 2021

President

Attest

Interim Secretary-Treasurer



13:(2-,:;11 100- Greater Cieveland Regional Transit Authority
07-03-97 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
TiTLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.-
CONTRACT: OVERHEAD DOOR REPAIR, AS SPECIFIEDAND AS ~ |.2021-13
REQUIRED Date:
VENDOR: ADMJ HOLDINGS LLC, DBA ADVANCE DOOR CO. iﬁg’;ﬁf_‘ry 11,2021
AMOUNT: NOT TO EXCEED $405,000.00 FOR A THREE-YEAR Service Management

BASE PERIOD, WITH TWOQO, ONE-YEAR OPTIONS NOT | Department
TO EXCEED $135,000.00 EACH, FOR A TOTAL
CONTRACT AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $675,000,00

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval [} Review/Comment [ information Only [ Other

1.0 PURPQSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Authority to enter info a contract for overhead
door repair and maintenance services at various facilities throughout the Autherity, as
specified and as required, for a base period of three years, with two, ocne-year options, for a
total contract period of five years.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: This project provides services to repair and maintain the
overhead doors at various facilities across the Authority due to damage from accidents, as
weli as fatlures from age and normal wear, This service maintains the security of the
Autharity's buildings and equipment, as well as prevents employees and assets from being
exposed to inclement weather.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bid ("IFB") was posted on the
procurement web site and advertised in the local newspapers. Notifications were sent to six
potential bidders. Five interested parties downioaded the solicitation from the web site. Two
responsive bids from respansible bidders were opened on December 29, 2020. A summary is

as foliows:
BLD Doaor Service, LLC
ADMJ Holdings LLC, dba Overhead Door
dha Advance Door Co. Company of Akron
Yr1 $150 %165
Yr2 3152 3165
Hourly Rate
for 2-Person Yra $154 $175
Crew
Yr 4 $155 $175
Yr5 $158 $180




Staff Summary & Comments )
Overhead Door Repair 2021-13
Page 2

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

B.0

8.0

The bid of ADMJ Holdings LLC, DBA Advance Door Co. has been determined by the
Procurement Department to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder, The
contract will include hoth material and labor, at the labor rates contained in the bid document,
The “not to exceed” amount is based on the average cost incurred on both material and labor
over the past three years, resulting in an estimated annual cost of $135,000.00, for a three
year base period not to exceed $405,000.00, with two, one-year options not to excead
$135,000.00 each, for a total contract not to exceed $675,000.00. A price analysis was
performed and the Procurement Department has determined the price to be fair and
reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 0% DBE goal was established for this procurement due to the lack of certified DBE
firms.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement will be funded through the General Fund, Service
Management Departrment budget, in an amount not to exceed $405,000.00, at established
hourly rates, for the base period of three years, with two, one year options in an amount not to
exceed $135,000 per year, for a total contract amount not to exceed $675,000.00.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would delay the continued
repair and maintenance service required on the Authority's overhead doors, potentially
exposing the Authority's employees and assets to financial and safety risks.

RECOMMENDATION: H is recommended that the bid of ADMJ Holdings LLC, DBA
Advance Door Co., be accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General
Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

ATTACHMENTS: None
Recommended and certified as appropriate to the

availability of funds, legal form and conformance
with the Procurement requirements.

eneral Manager, Chief Exe&utive Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2021-13

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NOQ. 2020-183 WITH ADMJ HOLDINGS LLC, DBA
ADVANCE DOOR CO., FOR OVERHEAD DOOR REPAIR, AS SPECIFIED
AND AS REQUIRED, FOR A THREE YEAR BASE PERIOD NOT TO EXCEED
$405,000.00, WITH TWO, ONE-YEAR OPTIONS NOT TO EXCEED
$135,000.00 EACH, FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$675,000.00 (GENERAL FUND, SERVICE MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT
BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regiona! Transit Authority requires recurring services
for repair and maintenance of the Authority's overhead doors at various facilities: and

WHEREAS, the bid of ADMJ Holdings LLC, DBA Advance Door Co, located at 4555
Willow Parkway, Cuyahoga Heights, Chio 44125, for the furnishing of overhead door repair
services, as specified and as required, for a three-year base period with two, one-year options,
was received on December 28, 2020 and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of ADMJ
Holdings LLC, DBA Advance Door Co., to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible
bidder and recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFQORE, BE IT RESQOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of ADMJ Holdings LLC, DBA Advance Door Co., for overhead
door repair services, as specified and as required, be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with ADMJ Holdings LLC, DBA Advance Daor
Co. for the furnishing of overhead door repair services, as specified and as required, for the
base three years with two, ane-year options, with the right to exercise the two, one-year options.

Section 3. This procurement will be funded through the General Fund, Service
Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $405,000.00, at established
hourly rates, for the base period of three years, with two, one yaar options in an amount not to
exceed §135,000 per year, for a total contract amount not to exceed $675,000.00.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and
Addenda, thereto, if any; the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding
and insurance requirements; and all applicable laws relating to the contractual obligations of the
Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that ADM.J Heldings LLC, DBA Advance Door Co., will attempt to exceed the 0%
minimum DBE goal assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: February 16, 2021
President

Attest:

interim Secretary-Treasurer



o 26 Greater Cleveland Regiona! Transit Authority
” STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: PROJECT 52T — LIGHT RAIL TRACK REHABILITATION 2021-14
BUCKEYE-WOQDHILL TQ SHAKER SQUARE Date:
VENDOR: RAILWORKS TRACK SERVICES, INC. February 11, 2021
AMOUNT:  $7,996,000.00 Initiator:

Engineering & Project
Davelopmeant

ACTION REQUEST!
Approval [ Review/Comment [l Information Only 1 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Authority to enter into a contract {o provide
construction services for Project 52T - Light Rail Track Rehabilitation Buckeye-Woodhill to
Shaker Square.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The work to be performed under this contract consists of the
rehabilitation of east and westbound tracks from Buckeye-Woodhill Station to Shaker Square from
station 225+00 to 307+50.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bid (“IFB") was posted on the GCRTA
Frocurement website and advertised in the local newspapers. Twenty-one interested parties,
including potential subcontractors, downloaded the solicitation package. Two responsive bids
were received and opened on January 26, 2021, as follows:

Company Name Total Base Bid
RailWorks Track Services, inc. $7,996,000.00
Delta Railroad Construction, Inc. $9,249,302.00

The Basis of Award is the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder for the Total Base Bid
price. RailWorks Track Services, Inc. was determined to be a responsible bidder. The Total Base
Bid price of $7,996,000.00 from RailWorks Track Services, Inc. is 19.6% less than the Engineer’s
Estimate of $9 948 950.00.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have
been met. A 9% participation goal was established for this procurement. RailWorks
Track Services, Inc. has committed to achieving the DBE participation through the
utilization of Cook Paving and Construction (African American female-owned) in the
amount of $720,000.00 or 9%,

FOLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shali be payable through the RTA Development
Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited
to Capital Grants OH-2019-037-307 and OH-2020-044-5337 in an amount not to exceed
$1,996,000.00, and 100% Local Funds pending Ohio Transit Partnership Program
(OTP2) reimbursement in an amount not to exceed $6,000,000.00, for a total contract
amount not to exceed $7,996,000.00 ($1,596,800.00 in federal funds which represents
20% of total cost).



2021-14
Staff Summary & Comments

Light Rail Track Rehabilitation Buckeye-Woodhill to Shaker Square
Page 2

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer will impact the rehabilitation of the
tracks from Buckeye-Woodhill Station to Shaker Square.

80 RECOMMENDATION: This project was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the
February 2, 2021 Operational Planning & Infrastructure Commitiee meeting. it is
recommended that the bid of RailWorks Track Services, Inc. be accepted and the
resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into
a contract,

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and cerified as appropriate to the availability
of funds, legal form and conformance with the Procurement
requirements,

"‘""d:rifjrl"ﬁ_.&/"t ‘ Pt = nfé‘“}

C%nera] Manager, Chief Executiv fcar

Xf‘”




RESOLUTION NO. 2021-14

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NQ. 2020-196 WITH RAILWORKS TRACK
SERVICES, INC. FOR PROJECT 52T — LIGHT RAIL TRACK REHABILITATION
BUCKEYE-WOOQDHILL TO SHAKER SQUARE STATION, AS SPECIFIED AND
AS REQUIRED, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $7,996,000.00 (RTA
DEVELOPMENT FUND, ENGINEERING & FROJECT DEVELOFMENT
DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority deems it necessary to acquire construction services undar
Project 52T ~ Light Rail Track Rehabilitation Buckeye-Woodhill to Shaker Square; and

WHEREAS, the bid of RailWorks Track Services, Inc., located at 2101 S Carpenter St,
2" Floor, Chicago, lllinois 60608, was received on January 26, 2021 in an amount not to
exceed $7,996,000.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of RailWorks
Track Services, Inc. to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and recommends
acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of RailWorks Track Services, In¢. for Project 52T — Light Rail
Track Rehabilitation Buckeye-Woodhill to Shaker Square, be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with RallWorks Track Services, Inc. for Project
52T — Light Rail Track Rehabilitation Buckeye-Woodhill to Shaker Square.

Section 3. That said contract shali be payabie from the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to Capital
Grants OH-2019-037-307 and QH-2020-044-5337, in an amount not to exceed $1,996,000.00,
and 100% Local Funds pending Ohio Transit Partnership Program reimbursement in an amount
not to exceed $6,000,000.00, for a total contract amount not to exceed $7,996,000.00
($1,596,800.00 in federal funds which represents 20% of total cost),

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, thereto, if any;
the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance
requirements; and alt applicable laws ralating to the contractual obligations of the Authority,

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that RaitWorks Track Services, Inc. will attempt to exceed the 9% minimum DBE goal
assigned {o this procurement,

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: February 16, 2021

President

Attest:

Interim Secretary-Treasurer



’3;‘;}"‘ 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
070307 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS N
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:

CONTRACT: AUTHORIZING AN INCREASE IN THE GENERAL

2021-15

MANAGER, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S CHANGE
ORDER SIGNING AUTHORITY UNDER CONTRACT

Date:
February 11, 2021

2019-001 - PROJECT NO. 52M REHABILITATION OF
TRACKS 10 AND 13 AT TOWER CITY STATION

VENDOR: RAILWORKS TRACK SERVICES, INC.
AMOUNT: NTE $250,000.00

Initiator:

Engineering & Project
Development
Department

ACTION REQUEST;
® Approval [0 Review/Comment [ Information Only 11 Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Authority to increase the General
Manager, Chief Executive Officer's original change order signing authority for this

contract.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: Project 52M Rehabilitation of Tracks 10 and 13 at
Tower City Station is 139 days away from final completion. This request will increase the
General Manager/Chief Executive Officer's ¢change order signing authority for this
contract by $250,000.00. This action will streamline the processing of any change order
that might be needed during the remainder of the project and ensure that the project is

completed on time.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Contract No. 2019-001 was competitively bid and
awarded to RailWorks Track Services, Inc. on March 26, 2019, by Resolution No. 2019-
027, in an amount of $11,860,000.00. There have been 16 change orders, as detailed in
the attached Change Order Log, totaling $471,070.66. The current balance in the
change order sighing authority stands at $28,929.34. This request will increase the
authority by $250,000.00 bringing the total change order authority authorized under this
contract o $750,000.00. This is an approximate 6% increase to the original contract

total.

4.0 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements
have been met. A 17% DBE goal was established on this procurement in
2018. Railworks Track Services, Inc. has agreed to maintain the established DBE

participation goal on the project through the use of existing DBE firms.

5.0 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: That said change order authorization shall be payable from the
RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development budget, including but not
limited to Capital Grants OH-2018-001, OH-2018-024, OH-2018-027, and 100% Local

funds.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Not increasing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer's
change order signing authority for this contract may impact the performance

schedule for the work.




Staff Summary & Comments 2021-15
Rehabilitation of Tracks 10 and 13 at Tower City Station
Page 2

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: A reinstatement of a $500,000.00 signing authority was
discussed by the Board of Trustees at the February 2, 2021 Operational Planning &
Infrastructure Committee meeting. Based upon this discussion, it is recommended
that the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer's change order signing authority
for this contract be increased by $250,000.00.

9.0 ATTACHMENT: Change Order Log.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance
with the Procurement requiremeants.

G?ﬁeral Manager Chaef E)‘Eer:ﬁfve Officer




Contract # 2019-001

Qriginal Contract Amount $11,860,000.00

APPROVED CHANGE ORDERS

REHAEILITATION OF TRACKS 10 AND 13 AT TOWER CITY STATION

PROJECT NO. 52M

Contractor:

RailWorks Track Services, Inc.

Taotal Change Order Amount To Date $ 471,070.66

Total G.M. C.O. Authority Remaining $28,929,34

% Change ta Date: 94.2%

"""" c/0 C/0 DESCRIBTION "APPROVAL — CHANGE ORDER NEW
NG, DATE AMOUNT CONTRACLT
1. Whee!} Detectors 09/25/2019 $9,817.08 $11,869,817.08
2. Concrete Under Platform 11/15/2019 345 473.79 $11,915,290.87
3. Removal of Subgrade Materlal 01/08/2020 $274.35 $11,915,5665.22
4. Signal Cable Conduit 01/30/2020 $1,14“é.09 $11,916,710.31
5. Raelocation of Signal Cables 01/30/2020 $4,700.61 $11,921,410.92
6. Installation of Floor Tile and Block 02/14/2020 $9,D45.43 $11,930,456.35
7. Witness Holes 02/14/2020 $£3,032.98 $11,933,489.33
8. Expansion Material 02/14/2020 $15,154.86 $11,948,644 19
9. ADA Panels along Track 10E 02/14/2020 $6,856.04 $11,955,600.23
10, No Cost Time Extension 02/27/2020 $0.00 $11,955,500.23
11. Additional Design for GL-1 05/19/2020 $132 41597 $12,087,916.20
12.' No Cost Time Extension DEIZEWIZDEO $0.00 $12,087,916.20
13. Replacement of 100% RA Rail 07/2012020  $49,578.54 $12,137,494.74
14. Drainage Improvements 08/15/2020 34,238.17 $12.141,733.91
15. Removal and Replacement of Sub-Floor 10/07/2020 $12,836.75 $12,154,570.66M
16. Final Design and Field Modifications for GL-1 01/13/2021 $176,500.00 $12,331,070 66




RESOLUTION NO. 2021-15

AUTHORIZING AN INCREASE IN THE GENERAL MANAGER, CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S CHANGE ORDER AUTHORITY UNDER CONTRACT
2019-001 — PROJECT 52M REHABILITATION OF TRACKS 10 AND 13 AT
TOWER CITY STATION IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $250,000.00

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer approved a contract for
construction services with RailWorks Track Services, Inc., for a total contract price of
$11,860,000.00, as authorized under Resolution 2019-027: and

WHEREAS, the Genaral Manager, Chief Executive Officer utilized $471,070.66 of the
original $500,000.00 signing authority aliotted for change order work required for this extensive
project, thereby leaving a balance of $28,929.34 in her present change order signing authority;
and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the present contract
value of $12,331,070.66 may need to be increased, due to the possibility of future changes
beyond the available signing authority that may be necessary to complete the project; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems an increase in her
change order signing authority in an amount not to exceed $250,000.00 will help streamline the
processing of any change order that might be needed during the remainder of the project and
ensure that the project is completad on time.

NOW, THREREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer's change order signing
authority under Contract No. 2019-001 — Project No. 52M Rehabilitation of Tracks 10 and 13 at
Tower City Station be increased in an amount not to exceed $250,000.00, bringing the total
change order amount authorized under this contract to $750,000.00.

Section 2. That said change order authority shall be payable from the RTA
Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development budget, including but not limited to
Capitat Grants OH-2018-001, OH-2018-024, OH-2018-027, and 100% Local funds.

Section 3. That all other terms and conditions of this contract will remain unchanged.

Section 4. That this resolution shali become effective immediately upon its adoption,

Adopted: February 16, 2021

President

Aftest;

Interim Secretary-Treasurar



Lo a2 Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
‘ STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: LANDSCAPE MAINTENANGE AND PARKING LOT SNOW | 2021-18
REMOVAL FOR THREE YEARS Date:
VENDOR: CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS February 11, 2021
AMOUNT; $824,305.78 Initiator:
Rait District

ACTION REQUEST:
B Approval I Review/Comment 7 Information Only [ Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

PURPQSE/SCOPE: This action will renew an existing agreement with the City of Shaker Heights
to perform landscape maintenance of the Authority’s right of way along the Blue and Gresn Lines
and remove snow from the Authority’s rail station parking lots within the City.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The initial Governmental interagency Agreement was entered
into as part of the Mass Transit Systern Transfer Agreement by which the Autharity acquired the
Shaker Heights Rapid Transit System, including the rights-of-way. Shaker Heights reserved to
itself the right to perform those services, and the Authority agreed to compensate the City for its
labor and material costs pursuant to a fixed schedule of services. This new agreement is for three
years, which coincides with the terms of the City's union agreemeants.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROQUND: The initial agreement, entered into on November 23, 1982
and amended on May 1, 2000 and again on February 23, 2001, is an ongoing contractual
agreement with the City of Shaker Heights for the maintenance of grounds adjoining raif rights-of-
way. It delineated the respective responsibilities as to the maintenance of those grounds and
facilities adjoining the Biue and Green Lines of the Authority. Ohio Revised Code 306.43(H){4)
permits a regional transit authority to enter into agreements for goods or services with another
political subdivision without compaetition.

The cost for the period from January 2021 through December 2023 is not to exceed $824,305.78.
The annual cost is $273,031.34 for year 2021, $274,762.82 for year 2022 and $276,511.62 for
year 2023. This three-year total is approximately 1.5% below the previous contract pricing.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: The Office of Business Development does not
conduct Affirmative Action reviews or establish DBE participation goals on governmental
contracts or interagency agreements.

POLICY IMPACT: This action will carry out a provision of the agreement by which
the Authority acquired the Blue and Green Lines,

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This agreement will be funded through the General Fund, Rail
District Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $824,305.78 for the three-year
period,



Staff Summary & Comments 2021-16
Landscaping and Snow Removal at Shaker His.
Page 2

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Rejectthis offer, Rejection of this agreement would represent a breach of the
Mass Transit System Transfer Agreement.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: Itis recommended that the resolution be passed authoerizing the
Genera!l Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into the Agreement.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None,

Recommendad and certified as appropriate to the availability
of funds, legal form and conformance with the Procurement
requirements.

p— e

/7
-~ ) ‘_,_-} .
- per e
-l . - iy
M ey =

Géneral Manager, Chief Executive’Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2021-16

AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS
FOR LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE AND PARKING LOT SNOW REMOVAL
FOR A PERIOD OF THREE YEARS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED

$824,305.78 (GENERAL FUND, RAIL DISTRICT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, Ohio Revised Code, Section 306.43(H)(4) permits a regional transit
authority to enter into agreements for goods or services with ancther political subdivision without
competition; and

WHEREAS, by virtue of the Mass Transit System Transfer Agreement of 1975, the City
of Shaker Heights (“City”) and the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Autharity”)
agreed that the City will perform maintenance of grounds adjoining rail rights-of-way and wilt
remove snow from the Authority's parking lots at rail stations within the City and that the
Authority shall reimburse the City for the cost thereof; and

WHEREAS, the parties wish to renew this Agreement for a period of three years
commencing January 1, 2021 and ending December 31, 2023 for a total amount not to exceed
$824,305.78.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga Ceunty, Ohio:

Section 1. That the CEQ, General Manager/Secretary-Treasurer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into an agreement with the City of Shaker Heights for the
maintenance of grounds adjeining rail rights-of-way and removal of snow from the Authority's
parking lots at rail stations within said city for the period commencing January 1, 2021 and
ending December 31, 2023.

Section 2. That said agreement shall be payable from the General Fund, Rail District
Department budget in an amount of $273,031.34 for year 2021, $274,762.82 for year 2022 and
$276,511.62 for year 2023, for a total amount not to exceed $824,305.78 for the three-year
period.

Section 3. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon appropriation of funds for future years and upon compliance by the contractor
to the Specifications and Addenda, thereto, if any; the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the
Board of Trustees, bonding and insurance requirements; and all applicable laws relating to the
contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 4. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: February 16, 2021

President

Altest:

Interim Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100-326

70397 Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
2021-17
APPROVAL OF THE AUTHORITY'S 2021 PUBLIC Date:
TRANSPORTATION AGENCY SAFETY PLAN (PTASP) February 11, 2021
Initiator:
Safety Department

ACTION REQUEST:

X Approval {1 Review/Comment I Information Only 3 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will approve the Authority's 2021 Public Transportation
Agency Safety Plan (PTASP). Under Federal Transit Administration (FTA) regulations,
the PTASP must be approved by the transit agency's governing board.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority’'s Safety Department has prepared a
2021 PTASP with updated performance targets to meet FTA reguirements per 49 CFR
673. The PTASP is a risk and performance based plan utitizing Safety Management
System (SMS) principles to describe safety processes and guide the Authority's activities
in such areas as emergency preparedness, hazard reporting and management, safety
training, and the promotion of safety to maintain a positive safety culture. The PTASP
contains a requirement for annual updates and subsequent approvals from the Authority's
Board of Trustees.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: Adoption of the Resolution will enable the Authority to comply with 49
CFR Part 673.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: Failure to adopt the Resolution will result in failure to satisfy FTA's
approval requirements which could cause the Authority to be out of compliance with
grantee requirements and affect current and future funding.

ALTERNATIVES: Rejection of the resolution would impact and delay compliance with
FTA regulations.

RECOMMENDATION: The pltan was discussed at the Board's Audit, Safety Compliance
& Real Estate Committee meeting on February 2, 2021, which reviewed and referred it to
the full Board for approval. It is recommended that the Resolution be approved to satisfy
FTA's requirements.

Recommended and cedified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with the
Procurement requi[;asments.

- T

_.w"{:: ﬁfjé;#}/é M*"w—w

(Generaf Manager, Chief Exgtutive Officer




RESOLUTION NOQ. 2021-17

APPROVING THE AUTHORITY'S 2021 PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AGENGY
SAFETY PLAN (PTASP)

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has been granted the power and authority, pursuant
to Chapter 306 of the Ohio Revised Code, to manage and conduct the affairs of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (the “Authority”); and

WHEREAS, the Authority’s 2021 Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan (*PTASP")
will reptace the Authority's 2020 version; and

WHEREAS, under federal regulation, 49 CFR Part 673, the Federal Transit
Administration (“FTA") has set forth requirements and guidelines for a PTASP; and

WHEREAS, as set forth in the regulation, the Authority's governing board is required to
review and approve each transit agency's annual PTASP; and

WHEREAS, on January 28, 2021, the PTASP was emailed to all members of the Board
of Trustees; and

WHEREAS, on February 2, 2021, the Audit, Safety Compliance & Real Estate
Committee considerad the PTASP and recommended approval to the full Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the Authority's 2021 Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan
("PTASP"), which is in the form of the attachment hereto, is approved, and the General

Manager, Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to submit the PTASP to the Ohio
Department of Transportation for adoption and approval.

Section 2. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Attachment: 2021 Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan (PTASP).

Adopted: February 16, 2021
Prasident

Attest:

Interim Secretary-Treasurer



Forte 100-326
07-03-97

Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Autherity

STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

TITLE/DESCRIPTION; Resolution No.:

2021-18

AMENDING BUDGET APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE FY 2021 CAPITAL | Date:
IMPROVEMENT FUND BUDGET TO PROVIDE FOR AN INCREASE OF | February 11, 2021

$124,500,000 initlator:
Office of Management &
Budget
ACTION REQUEST:
E Approval (1 Review/Comment O Information Only 1 Other
1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will authorize an increase in the Fiscal Year ("FY") 2021 Capital

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

Improvement Fund budget appropriation by $124,500,000.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The FY 2021 Capital Improvement Fund was adopted by the
Board of Trustees on May 12, 2020 through Resolution No. 2020-039 and on December 15, 2020
by Resolution No. 2020-100. In December 2020, the scope of work for the procurement of rail
cars had not bsen sufficiently finalized to include reasonable appropriation for the rail car
replacement program in the FY 2021 Capital Improvement Fund budget. An additional
appropriation of $54,500,000 wilt provide sufficient balance for the rail car replacement program
in FY 2021,

On December 27, 2020, President Trump signed H.R. 133, the Coronavirus Response and Relief
Supplementat Appropriations Act (“CRRSAA"). This Act provides $14 hillion in emergency
funding for transit agencies to be managed by the Federal Transit Administration (‘FTA"). The
Authority is estimating to receive $60,000,000 through CRRSAA to cover operating expenditures
incurred due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

The proposed amendment to the FY 2021 Capital Improvement Fund budget will increase the
overall appropriation by $124,500,000 in order to establish the proper budget authority to cover
funding to be received from the Federal Transit Administration (‘FTA") under the Coronavirus
Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act (‘CRRSAA") estimated at $60,000,000
and $64,500,000 for the rail car replacement program.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: The FY 2021 Capital Improvement Fund budget provides for the upkeep of the
Authority's existing infrastructure, facilities, equipment, vehicle replacement programs, and alsa
provides for the implementation of projects included in the Long-Range Plan. The funds
expensed under the CRRSAA grant will he 100% federally funded, with no local match

requirement,

ECONOMIC IMPACT: These revisions will increase the total FY 2021 Capitat improvement Fund
budget appropriation established in Resolution Nes, 2020-39 and 2020-100 by $124,500,000.
This increase in the FY 2021 Capital Improvement Fund budget will enable the Authority to
procure new rail cars and use the CRRSAA Act funding to reimburse the Operating budget for
operating expenses incurred due to the COVID-18 pandemic.




Staff Summary And Commaents 2021-18
Development Fund Appropriation
Page 2

6.0

7.0

8.0

ALTERNATIVES:; Not approve the budget revision as propased. This would leave insufficient
funding in the Capital Budget and delay procurement for the proposed projects inta future years.

RECOMMENDATION: The proposed amendment to the FY 2021 Capital Improvement Fund
budget appropriation was reviewed by the Board’s Operational Planning & Infrastructure
Committee on February 2, 2021, 1t is recommended that the Board adopt the amended FY 2021
Capital iImprovement Fund bucdget appropriation as proposed.

ATTACHMENTS:

A. 2021 = 2025 Combined Amended Capital Improvement Plan
B. 2021 — 2025 Amended RTA Development Fund Capital Improvement Plan
C. 2021 - 2025 RTA Capital Fund Capital Improvement Plan

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availability of
funds, legal form and conformance with the Procurement
requirements.

o

AP 2y

“@eneral Manager Chief Ex@cutﬁe Officer




956'L8L°4Z48  OPO'OSC'8CLS  000ZEO'ELLE  vRG'50R'GLLS  D8L'SEv'stL$  ZSIRZLLSZS SIVIOL

000'005' 1S BOE'00ES 00G6'00ES 000'00Es 000'o0es GoO'00ES SNUST PSUBLY

000081878 00G'000°8ZS 000'08Z'¥ES 000GST bES 000'0SZ 574 000°000°801$  wieaboug uawaneiday Jes pey
021'966'2LES  0O00SY'SZS 005'Zre' 18 005'Z89' 124 005" 212'92% 0L9°C06ZZS si20l01g ljey

GO0 R0e'rrLE o00'005'sLS 0o 005 9L s ooess'aLs oo0ens'sl s 000’0008l § "qunlay 1t BN Aagusasld
8L5'60F'ELS 005" LE9°TS 005" L0923 0052928 g05'LE9'2S 91565828 sisalord :0

09z'38L 2198 008'GEE'L LS oo 0L ELS o054 L' THY ooo'o0n L g 0YZ'gEEPLE SUBLWSACIEW] SANHIVES
B56'ZEF'0ES OrS'ELEeS BOO'TIT'ES FRE'CEE'ES oRL'OLS'sE SrZ'EIE S sa|aap § Jeawdinkg
g0a'00n'sols eo0'008'0Ts oog'o0e'nzs [iligeli R FE] oO0'ooe’ T 000'00E" LTS weifioud Juswaacsdw sng
D00°5T5°58 0% ooo00L L 600'525°es 000 00LS es sofizseg sng

$Z0Z-1Z0Z ueid SZ0Z uejd FZ0Z ueld £202 _ ~ ueldzzoz  jabpng 1oz AMOS31VO L0Irodd

fuoyny 3ebpng pauiquuion

NY1d LNIWIAOCHdWI TV LIdYI QINIGINOD QIANIWY S20Z - LZ0Z

¥ INJWHOVYLLY




8£Z'8E6'Z9 $BE'SSZ'6E 896 LIT'GY [236°122'88 asuejeg Buipul}
| §

000004 ZLY 084°281'9¢E4 PEG'QLO'SPE | AT sazmjipuadxg (eyo) ]
o a 0 o PUnN 4 SOUBINSY] O] 19jSUER1]

I} 4] 8] P JEESLUSHEEY PUOR O} J8psURl]

it 4] ] sEMppLadRy B

g 0 4’00009 YYSHYD £ 19V S3HVYD
000'00£'21 4 081 '481°8EL PEGOLO'88L YEG'OLG'EZL AepngQ telideg

sasnypuadxg

BET'IEA'SLL S9STEY'GLL 206 T8 EEZ Z06'Z82 061 533Un0s3y [ejol}
ES8'08E'9EL L65°021'0¢4 EL6'1P0'PLT E46°LP0°LLY anuaAay 2101
0 C il 0 anuaasy Byl0

0 o 0 ! ases [ende]

0 1§ | ] 4] SIUBIC) SO O] SSad0y

0 o 0 0 U JUCIIBIEAA JO) SPUNS BjEIS
96G'GE1L 0L 865°9EL'0L 865'0EL'6 865'9EE°6 sjues) jepdes sElg

¥ ¢ {000'000'09 0 BOUBISISSY 10V WYSHHO/SIHYD
000'0%: 08 ¥¥L'6¥6'801 LOZ'EC9'Z6 10Z'EE5'28 SeID jende]) jespad
B0G'00T 000'00% 00a°coZ DOO0dE BRUDTU] JLIBLIIS3ALE
OO'000'S 000°000'S 000'0006Y DOC'000' L2 U4 SAISSSY BUE WO IB)suBI}
SGZYRE'S SSE'YE8'S P840 LE v21'878'22 pun eldeD vy Wol Jejsusl|

It 4] [§] B B0 JUEG HRONISEI| 3BlS

{ a ] o BpORN0E PUOY STUBASY
000'000'62 0 COG'000's2 '000'6Z Spasstid 3MAISS 108G

SNuUaAaY
S8TGST 6L 896 122 5F A fsze vez sl Ssuzieq bulltibag]
we|d uejd 1@bpng papuswy 186png
£202 - 202 34174 LZ0Z

siSAjeuy aouejeg pun4 juswdojeasq YN

8 INJWHOVLLY



sisAjeuy aosuejeg pund |ejiden vy
S INJWHIVLLY

L5092 L SG6E'LLL' 981 L6ES 98LLEL'S aaueeg m:_m.um_#
6£2°006'8 SSZTZEL6 266" 1P0° LY 266°L10'9Z sasnyipuadxy [ejol]
a 0 Ic {3 W14 O] JUBLUSSINGLHEY
GGZ PBE'S LR SR Fi1'BL8E ¥iL'BLR'EE puN4 ustndoEasq Y1 H 0} d8jsued|
i 0 (} i sanupuadxg e
¥O6'E6EE'L 0o0o'cBF L 818728%'| 2R grAtiog ] [elete supnoy
QO0'01L4" 000's5L | DOOTEBS'L Joo0 LeS') asueualHE 955y
saungIpiadxy
08.L'8PZ 91 01Z°032'5L | 7 rag] 2LLEETLE $80IN053Y 30 L]
E
SER'0EL'GL £Z0'550°0% Jess‘sab‘cr G558'COF g2 anuaaay [e1e L]
mn_ g 1 SEtAATY A0
00{'s8 ooo'ss 'Gg 000'S9 SHUODUE JUSLISBAUY
GER'GO0'DE CZ0'¥E6'S B2 REC'Er |559'868'87 PUMS [EJSUS D) LWOIE 29)SUBTE
anusAay
G66'LLL'S 9gLLE)L'S foze'69L'E EE'69L°E asuz(eg Puluulbagi
ue|d ueid 1abpng papusy mm.m_uam
€20t T ZTEne E20C LZog



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-18

AMENDING BUDGET APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE FY 2021 CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT FUND BUDGET TO PROVIDE FOR AN INCREASE OF
$124,500,000

WHEREAS, there is both a legal and a managerial requirement to establish the
revenues to be raceived for the upcoming fiscal year, including all taxes, user fees, and other
types of revenues, as well as estimates of all expenditures or outlays for the capital programs of
this public transportation system to be paid or met from said revenue during each fiscal year:
and

WHEREAS, in order to meet those requirements, a Capital Improvement Fund budget
for the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("Authority”) for Fiscal Year (*FY") 2021,
beginning January 1, 2021 and ending December 31, 2021 was prepared and adopted by the
Board of Trustees on May 12, 2020 through Resolution Nos. 2020-39 and 2020-100 on
December 15, 2020; and

WHEREAS, on December 27, 2020, President Trump signed H.R. 133, the Coranavirus
Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act ("CRRSAA"); and

WHEREAGE, the CRRSAA provides $25 billion in aid to individuals, businesses, and
hospitals in response to the economic distress caused by the coronavirus (“COVID-18")
pandemic; and

WHEREAS, the CRRSAA provides $14 billion in emergency funding for transit agencies
to be managed by the Federal Transit Administration ("FTA"} through the Transit Award
Management System (“TrAMS"); and

WHEREAGE, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority is increasing its
appropriation by $60,000,000 through CRREAA to cover operating expenses incurred due to
the COVID-19 pandemic in FY 2021; and

WHEREAS, the Authority will require an additional $64,500,000 appropriation for the raif
car replacement program during FY 2021; and

WHEREAS, this funding was not included in the FY 2021 Capital improvement Fund
budget and there is a need to increase the FY 2021 Capital Improvement Fund budget
appropriation by $124,500,000; and

WHEREAS, increasing the appropriation for the Capital improverment Fund by
$124,500,000 will establish a sufficient balance in the FY 2021 Capital Budget to align with
funding to he advanced for the rail car replacement program and funding to reimburse the
Operating budget for operating expenses incurred due to COVID-19.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, and Ohio:

Section 1. That the revenues and appropriation budget set forth in Resolution Nos.
2020-39, adopted May 12, 2020 and 2020-100 approved on December 15, 2020, be and are
hereby amended as follows:



Resolution No. 2021-18
Page 2

FY 2021 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND BUDGET APPROPRIATION

Current 2021 Appropriation Amended 2021 Appropriation
$126 674,752 $251,174,752

Section 2. That Resolution Nos, 2020-39 and 2020-100 shall remain unchanged in all
other respects.

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: February 16, 2021

President

Attest:

tnterim Secretary-Treasurer



Feorm 100-326

Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

oot STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:

2020-19

AMENDING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE CURRENT Date:

EXPENSES AND OTHER EXPENDITURES FOR THE GREATER February 11, 2021
CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY, AS ADOPTED initiator

IN RESOLUTION NO. 2020-101 AND TO PROVIDE FOR A Office of Management
$15,000,000 TRANSFER TQ THE DEVELOPMENT FUND AND & Budget
INCREASING APPROPRIATION TO THE RESERVE FUND BY

$28,000,000 FOR RAIL CAR REPLACEMENT PROGRAM

Approval ] Review/Comment [ Information Only [] Qther

ACTION REQUEST:

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0

50

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will authorize an amendment to increase the transfar to the
Development Fund and increase appropriations in the Reserve Fund for the expenditures
for the raif car replacement program,

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The proposed amendment will authorize an increase in
the overall appropriations budget for Fiscal Year ("FY") 2021 by $43 million. An additional
$15 million will be transferred from the General Fund to the Capital Improvement Fund and
$28 million will be transferred from the Reserve Fund to the RTA Development Fund for the
rail car replacement program.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does nat apply.

POLICY IMPACT: The FY 2021 Budget provides for the revenues and expenditures of the
Authority, These transfers from the General Fund and Reserve Fund will enable the
Authority to increase the appropriation, established by Resalution No. 2020-101, by $43
milion for the rail car replacement program.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: These amendments will increase the transfers to the Capital
Improvement Fund by $15 million and increase the expenditures of the Reserve Fund by
$28 million. These funds will be used for the rail car replacement program.

ALTERNATIVES: Modify or not approve the budget amendment as proposed. This would
prevent the Autharity from replacing its aging raif fieet.

RECOMMENDATION: The proposed 2021 Amended General Fund Budget has been
reviewed at the February 2, 2021 Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee and is
recommended for adoption. it is recommended that the Board approve the proposed FY
2021 Amended General Fund Budget and Fund Transfers as proposed herein.

ATTACHMENTS:
A Amended General Fund Balance Analysis

B. Amended Capital improvement Fund Balance Analysis
C. Amended Reserve Fund Balance Analysis




Staff Summary & Comments
2021 Budget 2021-19
Page 2

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availability
of funds, legal form and conformance with the Procurement
requirements.




g5 'grs)

1 7 A 1w sl {ib504d {suoypw) sasuadiy - sanusasy
HBLE YBLE TLa0n Yalb™3 aBleet| s o, sosuadaz Bunesady
WL Yk TB0q HEET aBueyn o el saes ¢ ueg wbussseg
G96°2LLE'SS ¥RE'OCC LR EPZ'80L'6Z ) EFTBOL YR asuejeg Hulpu3 ajgejieay
8£Z°929'F0E ¥8¥ 96V 662 BIC'YPYTEL BLLYPILLE sazmipuadx] |ejolf
SoZ'95L'ZE EYS'EEEZE Zeei51°0L 78815155 spund Jayi) (woy) o} sizjsuei] |ejo]
D5Y° LEL VT FEE'PLE ST 29T'PET LG ST FET'TY [EHdE] {WOoLS) o) Si2ysued] |ejo]
SEH'SS0 0 EEU GGG BSA'BEL LY BER'BOL AT pLUng pstsnoldi| gydes
CERGO0 L OLE'0Z9'E) B0F'SES'CE HOF'SESEL punf jusliizgay puog
[Epden {Wwoy} 0 su8sUBE]
PUNL 8AI3STy U WO SI8)SUBE]
§19°848'S 5Lo'elg's SL9'8L8 01 G19'848'01 pun.f sAlBsEy O SIBSUBL)
GOOOF goooy 000" GoO'SY pun4 ucisuad aL (Wolg o) Japsuer]
BOOOLT 00008’ 000'000°2 B00'000'E pung azuemsy| su} (WO O} J8jsuel]
SPUN S Ja4IG (LU0d)] OF sIaysuel)
£46'526°122 SEE'Z91°48T 861984292 B6%°98Y°T9T sainyipuadxy Buerade 1o ]
20T FEF 098 B58°ZS0'EEE PZO'EGL L 9F PEYTS L LO0F SONOSTY {301
£281£6'942 FZY'PrE'E5E 298°041°82E 198°041°892 anusAay 12301
BonRES e LiF5EE'E BLE'ELF'BE BLE'CLFEL saunppuady pasinguIey
FLE'8¥E BEGBFE'L BLE'BFE'E BLE'BFE L snuaATyY 180
PRI FEL| FZEROR 2%8'600'T BSE'EB0'Z BLUODL JLEHLLISIALY
& {1 000'0000% o YYSHYIAMY STUYD - souesissy Bunelado jeiepag
GB10PT TET Jasiigeislo R T gs0'02LsLE 950'0ZL 51T Xe} 85 ¢ SSES
ERR00L GLB'TO8'L aLs'cog’s S18'E0g | SUDISS0UOD 7 Suisipeapy
COL'ELE'BT HFETH0'8E 001wl IT OOV PLEAZ sared 1sbuassey
. INUDAIY
+BL 985S Y2 201°6T) LS LBEEE J52° 185 ELE asueieg Bupuibag]
ue|d uejd jebpng papuasuly ﬁwmﬂnm
€202 ZZ0Z LZoz 20T

s|sAjeuy asuejeg pun4 |eJ3Usn) pspuswy
¥ INIWH2YLLY



614'961'0.0 OPEELE Gy FSLCoF 05 FGL'E86 bl aoue|eg Buipul sige|iesy|
¥B5°C08'5L) 08L°SEF 6L} ZSLPLLLSE ZGLPLB9Z) saanjipuadxd [ejot|
0 &} iy In pUn o SSUBITISLY 0 8)SUBE]

mm Q fa] pUitd LBlalleyd pUCS 0 49)SUBE]

il o 0 saungpuedxy g0

bl o ‘00009 0 YYSHES /107 S3HYD - fegno Enden
$O6'C08'G1L OB 'SEFEEL ZoLwLIE' LB rAST AL T A Aeng jende

saunypuadxy

£82°000°981 0Z5' 508 Fa1 806" LS0°40E fsos’ic9's6l $331n0S3y |EIC1]
£ZPLZ9'0FL S9E' GPEPEL LS9 CER6LT I58'CE9'04) anuaady jejo)l
Iy 4] o i} anuarsy JSUED

0 4] e sseaT Ejdes
(00°000'ST 0 GO0'000°ST '000'6E SPRvItld 20BS 1980
8B8S°9EL'L 865981701 RESBEE'S 865 9EL'S speln jelde] aEs

0 0 000'000 09 ¥ BOUBISISSY YYSHYD / 1Y STHYD
000'09E 06 74 BPE B0L L0Z'Ce9'Z8 LOZT'CES' s sjuelsy |epdes [esepad
0o0's8E 000'59Z D00°G9T 0O0'S9T BLIOSLY JUSLEISOAL
0O0T000'S 000 000°s DO0'0006F G'000'1E PUn 4 SABS3Y WO Isjsuel |
5Z8°590'01 £Z0'¥86'8 BSTEBL'CY G8'86T'8Z PUN [BIOUSD WOUE Fajsuel |

ANUIAIY
OPECIE'SE SLEOr'6S {6+Z'vo0'zz | (AL A sauejeg buituibag|
ueid ue|d 19Bpng papusuy 18Bpng
EZBE FA A 1FA (Frdird A A

sisf|euy asuejeqg pung juswaaoidwyj jejiden papusuly

8 LNIWHIVLLY



0LE'88T il S59'505'S1E QE0'128°CL 020°188' )Ly 1230 1
yLE'ISE'S BZP'GEL ¥ 006" S ¥R'E o008’ .p8'E 5202 ALnoH | 0zoz ‘Areles Aed WLZ
¥IEOEG'L ZELEFFL SFl'GE OYE'SEE'RE %o0ys Buiion
FSgLE'E LAF'BSL'E ZPEENL'E ZYE'BOL'E ucnezijedsoH
Q080582 ESHFPEYT posn2ye'e loso'ire'e a4
44680 DLZ'BleE IO LGE'E IO LGL'E seoussqy palesuadwos)
sasue|eg Hulloy
GLE'BRTLL S69°605'S L joso‘ias'ct QR0 198 Ly aJie|eg mn_umm_m
00009090's 000°000°S jooo’sog sy f600°000°LE sairgipuadxy |ejo) b
it 0 . E {FZ0Z - Aed U3/ Z) pund [eIsUBg O} laysuel|
COCO00'S 890'000s OO0 G &Y BOC'000' L2 {ools Bullod} pung usludoaaad Wiy of ajsuel )|
4 g 0 o {uonejeldsold) pung JEI8USS) O JajsuRl |
It} g o o {l2nd) puns |esusc Of Jsjsuel |
G a 8] 0 (sazUssqy palesuatiuo ) PUN S [BISLSC) O} IDSuE] |
ssnppusdyy
01£'882°Z2 $65'605°02 080°188°Z3 S92UNOSHY {EI01
519'84i'9 518'829'3 GL9'E0S L) anusazy 1301]
o g o o anUsASY IS0
gleese SiL9'gle 519'848 519°848 Aed UifZ 40} 40 wal) sysuel |
COO'000'S 004'000°s 000'C000E QG0 0C00L anresay 32013 BUIoY J0f 40 Wal msysuel |
G g 0 ¥ uoiiEzyeldsoH Jo) 40 Woaf Faysue) |
& g ] E [ond JO§ 45 WoUf a2jsul |
G { 0 o sasUssyy palesuaduoD 10f 35 WA IeySue |
000005 MY OsL 000629 DO0'SER BLUOOU] JUBLLISaALY
anuanay
69604 51 BR0°18RE) GO LI LS GoF LIE LG aouejEg m:mccwmmm_
ueid .QE|ld jaBpng papusuny 3ohpng
YA A4 A LA LZde

SiSAjeuy aosue|eg pun4 9AI9Say papuswy
O INIWHOVYLLY



RESOLUTION NQ. 2021-19

AMENDING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE CURRENT EXPENSES AND
OTHER EXPENDITURES FOR THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL
TRANSIT AUTHORITY, AS ADOPTED IN RESOLUTION NO. 2020-101 AND
TO PROVIDE FOR A $15,000,000 TRANSFER TO THE DEVELOPMENT
FUND AND INCREASING APPROPRIATION TO THE RESERVE FUND BY
$28,000,000 FOR RAIL CAR REPLACEMENT PROGRAM

WHEREAS, the Authority has both a legal and managerial requirement to establish the
revenues to be received for the upcoming fiscal year, including all taxes, user fees, and other
types of revenues, as well as estimates of all expenditures or outlays for the operation of this
public transportation system in the fiscal year to be paid or met from said revenue; and

VWHEREAS, in order to meet those requirements, a budget for the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2021 and ending December
3, 2021 {"FY 2021") was prepared: and

WHEREAS, the Reserve Fund heips to protect the Authority from future economic
downturns, as well as significant increases in fuel and hospitalization costs, to financtally plan
for payment of earned vacation hours when an employee separates or retires, to establish a
method to account for future budget years with 27 pay periods, and to accumulate sufficient
funds to replace the Authority's aging revenue vehicles: and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Authority to increase the appropriation in the
Reserve Fund by $28 million for the rail car replacement program. This would increase the
Reserve Fund appropriation from $21 million to $49 million: and

WHEREAS, the Capital iImprovement Fund is used for the construction and acquisition
of major capital facilities and equipment, including purchasing of revenue vehicles; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Authority to increase the transfer to the
Capital Improvement Fund far the rail car replacement program by $15 million, to establish
sufficient funding in the FY 2021 Capital Budget; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees adopted the FY 2021 General Fund Budget on
December 15, 2020 through Resolution No. 2020-101; and

WHEREAS, the Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee of the Board of
Trustees reviewed and discussed the proposed increase to the FY 2021 General Fund Budget
on February 2, 2021 and recommended its approval by the Board on February 16, 2021,

NOW, THEREFORE EE {T RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the appropriations for the current expenses and other expenditures of
the Authority, during the period of January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021 ("Fiscal Year
2021"), as set forth in Resolution No. 2020-101, adopted by the Board on December 15, 2020
are hereby amended as follows:



Resolution No. 2021-19
Page 2

General Fund

2021 Amended
2021 Budgoet Budget
Appropriation Appropriation Variance
OPERATIONS DIVISION
31 PARATRANSIT IMSTRICT
25,535,790 25,515,730
32 RAIL DISTRICT
25,288,804 25,268,804
33 ASSET & CONFIGURATION MANAGEMENT
1,891,859 1,891,859
34 TRANSIT POLICE
14,020,698 14,020,658
35 SERVICE MANAGEMENT
8,177,697 6,177,697
36 POWER & WAY
14,531,161 14,531,161
38 SERVICE QUALITY MGMT
7,301,441 7,301,441
39 FLEET MANAGEMENT
37,144,344 37,144,344
43 PASS THRUS
650,000 650,000
46 HAYDEN DISTRICT
44,424 459 44,424,459
49 TRISKETT DISTRICT
33,963,672 33,963,672
58 INTELLIGENT TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS
1,760,873 1,760,873
DIVISION TOTAL 5 212,670,798 % 212,670,798 §
FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION DIVISION
10 OFFICE OF BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT
417,470 417,470
60 ACCOUNTING
4,312,684 4,312,684
62 SUPPORT SERVICES
1,028,490 1,028,489
64 PROCUREMENT
1,777,707 1,777,707
65 REVENUE
2225912 2225912
67 OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT & BUDGET
5,688,459 5,688,459

DIVISION TOTAL ] 15,4507 % 15,450,711 §



Resolution No. 2021-19

Page 3
2021 Amended
2021 Budget Budget
Appropriation Appropriation Variance
ENGINEERING & PROJECT MANAGEMENT DIVISION
55 PROJECT SUPPORT
692,133 692 133
57 PROGRAMMING & PLANNING
a01,055 801,055 -
80 ENGINEERING & PROJECT DEVELOPMENT
2,085,804 2,085,804
DIVISION TOTAL $ 3,678,992 §% 3,678,992 3
LEGAL AFFAIRS DIVISION
15 SAFETY
920,422 920,422 -
21 LEGAL
4,068,215 4,068,215
22 RISK MANAGEMENT
4 804,566 4 804 566 -
HVISION TOTAL % 9,793,201 § 9,793,203 & “
HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION
14 HUMAN RESOLIRCES
2,167,314 2,167,314 -
18 LABOR & EMPLOYEE RELATIONS
1,391,113 1,391,113
30 TRAINING & EMPLOYEE DEVELDPMENT
4,050,628 4 050,528
HVISION TOTAL ] 7,608,955 § 7,608,955 § -
EXECUTIVE DIVISION
12 EXECUTIVE
1,639,584 1,839,584
16 SECRETARY/TREASURER - BOARD OF TRLUSTEES
280,572 280,572
19 INTERNAL AUDIT
1,019,110 1,019,110 -
53 MARKETING & COMMUNICATIONS
2,417,932 2,417,932
61 INFORMATION TECHNCLOGY
7,726,620 7,726,620 -
99 FUND TRANSFERS
55,157 882 70,157 882 15,000,000
DIVISION TOTAL $ 68,441,699 & 83,441,699 3§ 15,000,000

GRAND TOTAL % 317,644,379 § 332,644,379 § 15,000,000



Resolution No, 2021-19
Page 4

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUNDS

(Resolution No 2020-100 amended and approved on Decemenber 15, 2020)
(Resolution No 2021-18 amended and approved on February 16, 2021)

Appropriation Appropriation
12/15/20 2/16/21
Construction and Acquisition of $126,674 752 $191,174,752
Transit Facilities and Equipment
Coronavirus Response and 0 60,000,000

Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act

BOND RETIREMENT FUND

Appropriation Appropriation

12/15/20 2116/21
Debt Service — Principal $11,345,000 $11,345,000
Debt Service ~ Interest 5,279,000 5,279,000
Other 1,500 1,500

INSURANCE FUND

Appropriation Appropriation
12/15/20 2/16/21
Claims & Premium Qutlay $2,919,000 $2,919,000

SUPPLEMENTAL PENSION FUND

Appropriation Appropriation
12715420 2M6/21
Benefits Payments 358,000 $58,000

LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND

Appropriation Appropriation
12/15/20 2116121
Safety & Security Training $20,000 $20,000

Capital & Related ltems 0 0

Variance

$64,500,000

60,000,000

Variance

oo o

Variance

Variance

Variance

o



Resolution No. 2021-19

Page 5
RESERVE FUND
Appropriation Appropriation Variance
12/15/20 2116/21
Transfers to General Fund 0 0 0
Transfers to RTA Development Fund $21,000,000 %49 000,000 $28,000,000
CUMULATED APPROPRIATIONS
Budget Approppriation  Amended Approppriation  Vartance

Generat Fund $317,644,379 $332,644,379 315,000,000
Capital Improvement Funds 126,674,752 251,174,752 124,500,000
Bond Retirement Fund 16,625,500 16,625,500 0
Insurance Fund 2,919,000 2,818,000 0
Supplemental Pension Fund 58,000 58,000 0
Law Enforcement Fund 20,000 20,000 0
Reserve Fund 21,000,000 49,000,000 28,000,000

Section 2. That all other provisions of the appropriations for the current expenses and
other expenditures of the Authority, during Fiscal Year 2021, as forth in Resolution No. 2020-
101, not otherwise amended, shall rernain in full force and effect.

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effectively immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: February 16, 2021

President

Attest:

Interim Secretary-Treasurer



Rlf] DT [%a1-g} LEELATR'T) 3 BIL9ETTE % [-ra TN F A WO0TT {%E1°8] [EE¥'RTIES 5 ERLINEIT % SHCATFGE 5
%ILT [ET 3] {EES 59} LIGSTtr IrEE'OSE [ETTE 53] [T LIG'STH PEEOSE
BETD [EGE] 1IDETE) 955'9% 550'62 %1553 AT TEl 55695 S50°ST

fo ] - ITes ) 783°7T - - fre A o TIEIT -

AT [245E°85] lELgaszt L0A'9ag VEL'E (245 "85) 1E08957) 1oRTase TELE
WEET HTTTSE 56T TELES SESSTE =ITT5% T5L5YE I6L6Y SEE'STE
=ERD [EXERL] {ve9'5ETl ELTEST LIBELT wBEED [ee vl {vra st TITE6T LIFELT
PART] %¥991:1 AEE'TI <6572 SERTT Y] HASTTE QSR'IL SE5ET SIFET
HEED . I%0TEs) losg'es) tE2'ea 15507 BT (27 e] [0e97esi FEEED $95'0%
BETD Az vt LBE'SE BLEUT 19D %989 T L9E'ST 0T'ET
s - [6LE"55T} SLE'EGT - 5030 - [5eEwsTI BLE BT -

MESD L59EHT FES'EL SF5EE EEEETT HA50 69987 FEE'EL P56 £8E'ETT
KIW'UE =LLE [gTiE FEL'SOEST $5L0TSRE EEL eI 03T ELFOE'ET P52 BTS AT
kT3 RET'T STOLOT FLLESEST TSLOSED P SETE ST Fié'E3E'2T r5s 0T HT
%EL9 B0 L5k (97709t} PE'EELE TTLERET HELE {%3D'L5) [sEz'ora'Th LOE'EEEE 124 ERET
%FET 14505°6E] [ ) EIG'RLS Pl HPET [ (D&e'sntl EGS'51S ESTPIE
=000 - [265's5E) L59'95E - woon - (DS9'a5T) D5T'95E -

wIon A1 [zar'Tazi ELgesT E6E'E %*Toa [3567L65 (DBT'TRE CCBSST SEEE
WIH'T 1HEEES) [EFZ'TET) frag v FAT'TTY %a0'T [HEEES (BT TET STFEDs BG4I
%9TE 15585551 [£6TvE9) § EATBLEY 5 A0EbrS 5 HATE [2656 Bt LB RED) §  S0TELEE 5 oSarvE H
TWLOLA0 % IONVHIH THwbEN L ALk THECL A% JSINYHI% TINWERA, HLNGR HENOIE
INIBHAD b20Z 1T0T INTHHND EA I ANIBERD

OTHE “TE AYWANYT ONY TZOZ TT AYANYE GI0M3 COIYId IHL DA
AN TrdINIT - s Foldd 05 OFEVdWOD O3MITIFE B 40 1HGd4TE
ALIYOHANY IESHEH 1 TenOrDad ERETIAID 4I193HE IHL

GRNd PRYIMNID ~ 0243034 HSVD Teiok

HS5TD 20 S32HA05 BIHLG ey SLNEIeISHvHIE T Lo1ans
SEdIF33d SADTATTITI5INE
E3HYLSESY ANIDYEG0 IS
[HIEWWN 79207 "ZL01S TWRIGII] 32N ILNVYE AL NIATHA
[HALYE T007 "2191S “Tod 30341 LN ISHREITY thvdD
SOMMFIE 5L IS dCH4 DN

THSE 30 SEAIEA0T FIRIG Oy LT SRR

ENNIAIY ¥FHI0 TrAQERRS
H3HLD
IRDTHE L53HAEN
E el R L F]
SATISSIMIESD S53F SLHO Okl
EMOISEIFEINED SROISS S NG/ DHES 8300 Y
FNN3AGE BRI

SFCISENS DNILYHIHO TP L1E05
i 35N W EITvE
~SILAIFEE S PHFH0

LIV HIDNISETE TYLDLENS
TMUZENL FHA0KS
5a0d-N
SIEEIIYY L INIONES - 3%l
S3T9T L343 1/55d
514w HEVD

PP DT



00T {xteesl BIFME0I) & 9BIEIFET § 0 MEESNUE 5 woOID (B33 lezg'sbz0TE 4 SET'ETROL % rOT'ERA0E §
=TT JE AT nrease’sl VEENSE ES0ERE"S HELT [%AE"55) {arr'ase’s) PEEOSE [
=IO [atEsa) [EIT =] SSHET TES"SE WP {BER99) [5e%'05] 5505 T86'SL
w200 - - - - s ] - - - -

=200 - feoz racsl - LETRYE =001 - [F{vcan -23 7] - (oz'THS"S
550°0 E5e6ET) (TES'T) TELE SIETL %5040 ALEED [T8STH PEL'E SLETT
55T SLELL 55947 ST5GTE 10065 wES'E SE0EL e S¥SETE 100'6E
%580 (e ) [L6L¢EL'T) LHFELT PT'THET wEH [EYER=C] (62 ¢117E) LI PITTEE'T
HIT'D [T (BEC T SIFET £59'97 =IT0 [E R ] [Ersa SETHEE ESR'GE
HS00 14BT65] (562790Z] 13577 Y RO (4EE 58] [558308) 15501 IS¥'EIT
HET'D f=sr gl (B5FTHE 07747 13578 WHEYD S 1) (ES+'TY anT'ee fAsl=s)
®I0'0 - (537"9aT1] - T %200 - 5019631 - BOT'IBE
KIED 1% p5a) gnEsas| SEEETY TEE'DEL =350 St 58] [ac1'254) £5EETE 155" DB
%99'06 RKET'S £TITE PSEOTS T TrSBES LT HFIE WET'S LTS 9T 5665 LT
HAG'TE SETE F1T°II6 TELOTE AT TFS'665°LT LR TS TELOTSRT TPS'EES 2T
FELD [EXRA3] [F79"T28] TZLERET SEE'SHIT S L EE] [F1a"Ega) TZLEBET SEE'SR0T
AHPET 1565 6] Lo s s TETPIE FERE HESE 126575] [ rsszl ESEPIE DO'EFE
RIS HOE ST 6T EREE 0T %200 SLDERED EEET TEEE 030'T

HOET 1550 LT (AT £2E] [ g i | =90°L TS0E (T (63T LRE] BIIEIk FLyHOE
Hal E {HET ST [1rEa7) [ ] [P A £ S MSTE I%ETET) [ATAAL N R S LO0TIE 3
TWLO130%  TONWHIN NI oL JEL LR E ST THAOL$0%  FIINYHIR EplrAIRTTY HINGS HLNN
JEEEE a0 TEoE 120Z ANFHEAD FEEET 1390n8

T20E "TE XYY Q30NI a0Fd3d 3H 404
THTF VoI 3D - 1SDENE Gd GINdWOD GINITIFY H5 YD 50 14GdIY
ALHOHLAY LiSH L TesDIDIH GRNIATTI 4217349 IHE

ORAS TeEThID - $3M33036 HEY] T l0E

HEWD 40 SIDHA0S BIHED ONY SLA3WISENERFE el 1805
141353 SAOINTTIZESN
FIMTLSISEY THIL¥EIL0 399303
S 19071 2L01S T EI0TE TINTH LN I8EINTATH
SR 10003 11045 TeH02 3 INIISHAENITY iterda
SR XL PHPACH BN

THEV3 30 $33800% BIHI0 GNY LINTN FSHIHEAITY

INAIAZE BIHI0 THEDLENS
HIHI1O
IR 153EIER]
IO ¥RLHTY
SHOISEININDD $5F] TIH 92 DNakERN
SROISSNNGCH SIS IIN0 L O LN EACY
FNNIATE HIHIG

SHAIZENS SMIIYE I T EQLENT
WL FER B SIS
SEITENS BN FEIT

SIS HITH 355 TWEOLEANS
ARILIEDIL FRFCH
55%d-n
SCEYIIHWE INFINLS - SN0
S LZAILLSE Y
STHYd HS52

BEETERE SR



MONTH 2019
RECEIVED ACTUAL
JANUARY $17,311,711
FEBRUARY $17,753,526
MARCH $19,588,186
APRIL $15,303,867
MAY $15,802,827
JUNE $18,297,841
JuLy $16,425,144
AUGUST $17,918,246
SEPTEMBER $19,225,063
OCTOBER $17,757,984
NOVEMBER $18,251,949
DECEMBER $18,555,735
TOTAL $212,192,079
Summary:

Month

2020
ACTUAL

$18,303,734
$18,450,264
$21,219,411
$16,460,465
$15,293,102
$15,926,194
$13,364,639
$17,532,128
$19,653,853
$18,570,261
$17,091,363

$18,282,055

$210,147,468

GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY

2021
ESTIMATE

$18,739,713
$18,889,733
$21,724,838
$16,852,539
$15,657,370
$16,305,542
$13,682,973
$17,949,728
$20,121,990
$19,012,588
$17,498,463
$19,284,581

$215,720,058

2.54% ($467,956) lower than February 2020 Actual
4.80% ($907,425) lower than February 2021 estimate

YTD

.71% ($260,935) lower than 2020 Actual
3.02% ($1,136,383) lower than 2021 estimate

SALES AND USE TAXES

ACTUAL RECEIPTS THROUGH JANUARY 2021

2021 2021
VERSUS MONTHLY
2020 ACTUAL VERSUS 2019 2020
2021 MONTH % 2021 MONTHLY YTD YTD
ACTUAL CHANGE ESTIMATE ACTUAL ACTUAL

$18,510,754 1.13% (1.22%) $17,311,711 $18,303,734
$17,982,308 | (2.54%) (4.80%) $35,065,237  $36,753,998
$36,493,063

2021
YTD

ESTIMATE

$18,739,713

$37,629,446

2021 2021 VERSUS 2021

YTD 2020 YTD % YTD % EST
ACTUAL CHANGE  VARIANCE
$18,510,754 1.13% (1.22%)
$36,493,063 | (0.71%) (3.02%)




HOYHIAAYT

%Ll n as BOS'8LT' L8
%600 £ 0% EAY'EEE e
HEL 0 £ 0% S18'06L
Ly 29E° LS 9ae'zeg'eTs
WELD £ i3 1BR'18L S
WELT £ 0% TLE'ZHES
%Gl £ 0g SZL'TE5h
%600 £ 0% BLY'ERS'FS
CATNY £ of o00'Lig
%S0 £ 0% 159728
%60 £ 0 LOZ'E9L'SES
YEY| [ FSETLS 5i1'tE0'st
0T 8 BLF'99%
B0 £ 0% LED'PEs
GO £ 0% f9F'ZEs
%EFD SHITS 205 vZR'SE
WEL T £ 0% LER'SLES
W60 € 0% SEY'B08'FE
WRIEET gl SIS ooo'eon’ L
AN as EAV'SFR'EELS
T £ (i3 SO6'ZLE LS
AR £ 0% 0ze're
e S 0s BE1'BE5LE
%O £ 0% LES'BS
#WEOT £ 0% SLE'RS0'TLLS
%600 £ 0s EGZ'eR'aLE
%S0 £ 0% FARF LR o
%ELD £99°2% FSEHEG'SE
%ol E FEE Gir1'GE ooc'og'Lg
%ol 2 Glg si+71 FAR 4
%olLE osh I5L°ES POT'ELIL
%300 £ 0% 5LZ'952'TS
A ALRENLY LSTHIINI  IvdiONiEd
JOVHIAAY 0L SAVE QINHIOY Lol

™o

Z2mmoeooern

T

L]

Lt Bt I B I Bt B

=

2Ll

£54
£

sAvd
We31

Z 1o ¢ abey

QIHO 40 F1VLS
HMNYH ATH

HNYE ATH
HNYE L3N
MNYA AT
OIHO A0 31913
HBYE ONd
HNYH A9H
CHO A0 3LViS
SNYI0N 13348

OHG A0 3EviS
SIIMEHNTE AT

HNWE ATH
OHG 40 3EYLS
HNYE NOLONILNGH

HNYA ASH
HNYE NOLOMIANGH
HNYE A3H
HNYE ONd
OO 40 3EV1S
CHHO 40 31WLS
HNYE A3

HNYE NOLOMIINDH
HNYE NO1SNINNH
HNYE NO1OMENNH
HNYE NOIORIINGH

NOLLALILSN]

OIHO 8Y1S
W3 ATH

Y3 ATH-MESYE HO1YD

YOI NYHD

HIZ ADH-HILYA W0
OHO U LSHILYIN T¥20T
LA ATNOH ADOWNIYIG
HI3 ATA- L0V 1830 6102

OHO YYLS- LDV LA30 6102
BOSSHOEWW 19207

QG HYLS

LNZFWIDHO SN A

HI3 AT
OO HYLS
JWTHA

HOT AT

LNACOOY XYL S3TWS
QHAE ALIALDY 33A0NINT
LN ATNOHN HOOHMN g
STHYICIHD HYLS

QHO gvls

LA ATH-LO0W NYHIY3INW

WIS H 404 118 AGNSY3HL

WHNTHd 504 7718 ASNSyINL

WHNSHD H0d T ABNSYIHL
AUV AN

LNIWNHLESN

L20Z 'LE AMYIINYT 40 SY

SINIWLSIANI AMNSYSHL 40 AHOLINIANG
ALHOHLNY LISNYHL TWNOIDTIH ANYI3AT IS ¥3LvIHO

FEGEMIE
FE0EMIE

EIDEAUE
LEREME
LEGEALE
$Z0EMHE
FEDEFLIE
EOELIE
EEALIAR N

LE0LPEL

FZ0EMHE
A AN

1E0EfHE
1Z02MIE
LEZOEISLIZ

E0ErLE
$Z0erE
LEQENE
XA AL
AT
LERENSE
charfle

LECEOEEL
ETOENES

FEOEAL RS
1ZOEfLIE
31vd

ONS NCISNIS TvLoL

FEOTELIL

FEGEfEE! L OMZ NOISHNId

NN HILPW Tr00T TVLOL
A A
1EDEMRIIT
XA LA A
EFALA A
LZ0TmENE
FCOEBE
0L
OZ0ZrLLe

GNNd KO D00

QNN ENSWITH0-MI MY TrloL
LEOLETE

CFRETA T QNS INSWIIHGAMNE A

QNS SONVENSN TYL0L
EFA LA A
SS0TRTE

2IGEETR Ok STNYHEASH

INNS TYYINTD TrLOL
ghemsoy
eodnee
BT
SEOEESS
iCOEM/EN
EFANA AL
AR FALTA N ONNd TN D

ONRd INIFEFELSE ONOF T¥LOL

BLOZMmS

GHOEmG

GLOZBE

(AN ES GHNd ENIWEHEI S anDg
V- {nl GNI

ALBENLYIW ASYHIEND



g o g abeg

WkZ0 if L AR L T b d SONNS TV TYLOL
Ye¥T G Fa: 1o B LiyoEsTss NN IAHISIH TWLOL
WE0D £ 5 PLOCT LIPS £ OIHD 20 31V¥1S OiHO YYLS b0/ LI VEOTHGEN
oS0 £ as T 92g'9Es E HNYE A3 H23 A3 LE0Z LT LEOZIEET L
Yl QG £ 0z 000 [ ¥E £ HNYE ONd LAW AJROW HODWH Y8 VO e FEOZ/EEL
ot 224 10€°18 SLLTEBOGE  ZpOd SAWTOTIN 334148 8344 EZOTFEL GEOTNLE
ANMNd IAHISTH
S0 05 282 95193 ONrtd TWEGYD YLK Triol
WELD £ as £BL'951'0% £ HPEYE ATH H33d A3N VEQZIET LEOZIBEL GNNd I¥EIdYD Wi
734 ALMALIVW LSIH3INI TVIONRd  SAYG MNOLLNLILSNE LNIWTHLSNE 31va dlvd ONTA
FOVHIAY 01 5A¥0 OZMES0Y . Wil WeaL ALENLYR 3SYHIHENL
IOYHIAY
L2OT ‘L€ AMVYNINYT 20 SY

SLNIWLSIANT AUNSYIYL 40 AHOLNIANI
ALIMCHLINY LISNVHI TYNCIO3Y ONY12AT 1D 831ly3Iug



SERSLT LS Panribay opisy 196 MLILON

6¥6'089°'5% {1207 10§ apisy 18] sougieg uaung

o =gY puoy

00'003'$Z9'9LS | OD0OS'FEE'ELE | DOCOO'SEE LIS OO OOS'RER'TY O0005'BE9'TS | 0004 00'B0%'6E9'78  00'000°052'90LS Spudg [0 )
A0 0GB CO'SIE TS s CO000 'SEE GO'GIE'LES Q0'GLE" 4TS oo O GLE' LTS O D0'SE0'8E  SE0F 093 hIY XL SBES-BLOT Sausg
O ooEess G005 '¥8E 0ooaaGL QoOnErLE JEODB'FIE oo 00°006'F48 D0000'000SL  LE0E D9 A Xe ] SSBS-5LOE salag
OoOoo'eir's COO00'FRE Y COG000sE'S GOOCO'vEo'L L0°0O0'¥E0' | oo Q0O00'yoo'L J000OCEE'iF  PEOE 920 S XBE SRES-SE0E sales
OFOSF LT C)'SZL 0I5 DOGO0BELT OOGELOvVE J0SEL'DFE Q00 O SZL'OFE JO'CI0G0E0L G202 2RQ A X2 ] SS[BS-YFEDE $SUSS
CIO00'GES'E 0O G0%ZeS'E 000" 008" 0000575 Q500%'288 o070 OO O0S 28T Jo'CO00SRL FTOE 08g Aoy XBJ S9EG-ZIOZ SaUDg
IO VEQTILACE FEQEI LT XA A S Al 1E0Triig A 1AL LEOCHS A AT NrAR 2= spucg
awambsy | puawasnnbay Rigeiey Aaeied AusEnbay Eigeded fageiey Buipuersing Aungew
9aq el BaIAteg 1G] lediotiig pIE T sHaRg ey | jediduugd 1suagL) lediotiug ol feuty

LZ0Z L€ AMVNINYT 4O 8Y
SNLYLS ONY 3TNJ3HOS JOIAMIS 1930
ALREOHLNY LISNYYL TYNOIOTIY QNYT1IAI IO HALYIHD



SeE9D b
ForA %FO0
%100 %ik'0
%00 YA
%l 00 %EL'D
%1010 Fo N
52100 Ykl D
Sl aleQ
L0 WESD
Pally Wid0
%101 il
%050 ®EE1
SLE' L s
Sabt E %51
# OTiA #O1F1A

LMYV OUYONYLS 3ovdday

%8R0 LADHOD'ES BPL'SBLPRLE
%IT0 9465 £E0'SEE0FES
S a0 LLB'FE £8ZZZLG5TE
%870 glz'gzs STE'ROLSOTS
SEE D FIOGEE 000" FOFBETS
S8F D 141'66% PER'SS L TETS
Sl - CEl a6t L W s o
LT LIV'E0ES LFPFESELTS
SS8E'0 S0LFETE O0OCOs 105
Shib L 089'FoES O00'0EL 0SS
SLEF L Zirl'orrs ODO'STLEGLT
SLEE L CEULLLS O 9EE APLS
obE L 498'a0ES OOOSZOEGES
Ti3kk aandvs IFINV vl
IAY  ISIHIUNI ADVHIAY
20T

PlatA AB £ puns Asuop Ansesu) S SenDa pry, e i

"SIE ANSeE | Yol g Jgy spiald Jualeanta ucdnos sSelane Gutaopg #

piALL %FLD XIan! fIANN] H3AD STIHA IOVHIAY VI

%00 SOLD FTTAY PPE'SES LGB 4P JEYD OL BY3A
HIIWIZ3
HIFFWIAON

H3gaLlao
HIgWE 1448
isnony
AE

INNE

A

Hdv
HIOWYIH
AdYnyg3a
AHYINGT

HANCH

%00 S0L0 k20
# O34 # QTN R ETEN
JEMHYI QUVYONYIS IDYH3IAVY

LeQe

Fre'GZ
WEE
LSIuILINI

2546LE1pe3
JONYIYH
ADVHIAY

bZ0Z 12 AMYNNYT HONOHWHL 31¥a OL Hv3A
HONVYWHOSHId INJNESTANE 40 AHYIHNNS

ALMHOKLAY LISNVHL TYNCIDIH ANYI3ATID HIIVTHD



£9'86%
Z5et
Z6es
vLOs

G9'90L'04%
STEIVE
TN
AR

SIO0EZ'EoD
OL'LOSOLE
0195018
9518

OV EFE'6S
sosg
£1'66%
Z9'119%
Po0%

9r'68T TS
vezes

P 228
Pt

g0 1 sbeg

31v0 Ol H¥3A 0262
J1v0 Ol H¥3A 1Z0C

F20Z AUWTINYT

AL Ol HY3A 9208
S1W0 OL Yv3A L1202
LE0T AYVNINYGT

J1%0 CL HY3A 3202
J1¥0 OL "¥3A L20T
LE0Z AHVNINGF

J1Y0 Ol HY3A $202
ALY0 OL °v3A L20E
L2028 AUVNINYF

bZ0Z AHVYNINYE

QHHOYYLS
LINADODY d3IMS HINYE AT
ANAd ANSINRJIHOANT MY

OIHOYY LS
dNNd IONVYHASNI

LNNOD0V d3AMS NV AW LNNOIOY LNYHIH3IW
LNYED SIAYI-OIHO UYLS

LNNO2IY AJCLSND ONd

LNNCITV d33MMS HNYE AT

QIHOYV1S

INNOIOV vl STTYS-NOLONIANNH

ANMZ TYEINTD

13HAHYW ATNOW NOLDNILNNH
AkN4 LINIRIYILTH gnog

(SISVE HSVYD) SONINYYI LNIWLSIANI NO LH043y
ALIMOHLNY LISNYHL TYNOIDIE aNYI3ATID U3LVYIdHD



08°GBT'EES
lge5e

lgess -
FEESE

96593
PEES
FELS
FT IS

66°805%
£0°901E
£0°90LE
703
65G0LS

8L306'LFLS
ELSOP'ERE
ELSOVEYS
SEHE
00°000°LPS
08€i9'Le
2218L%

€ jo g abed

3190 0L Wv¥3A 0208
3LV 0L HY3A LEOE
EE0C AHYNINYT

ALV0 0L We3A 0202
Jiwd OL H¥3A 1202

LEOE AHWNINGT

I 0L Wv3A 0208
3890 0L Wv3A LZ02
LE0E AHYNINYT

L0 OL U3 A 0Z0T
31W0 OL Hv3A LZ0T
LEZOZ AHYNINGT

1202 AYYNNYT
{SISYE HSYD) SONINYYI LNIJWISIANI NO L1H0dTN

INAOSOY dI3MS HNYE A3
QNN 19LIdYD Y1

13HHYIN ASNOW ANYE A3
IRNOD0Y ALIALLDY 3IAGTJNI

ANNOIDY d3TMS HNYE ASH
OIHOHYLS
QNN NOISNAd

ANNODIOY d33MS MNYS ATH
HOLYW T¥2078044

1830 §L0Z-OIHOUEYLS
HOLYIW TWD01-OIHOHY LS
QN3 HOLYIE 1Y 200

ALTHOHLNY LISNVYL TYNOIDIYH ANY1IATID HILV3IHO



£ io ¢ abeg

%PZ 0 %EZ 0 'BINIWISIANI NO OTaIA 3OVHIAY
LG4'GEB'IFTS L5461 IPES {1800} IONVIYE LNIMLSIANI IDHIAY
brR'5ES ¥PR'STS 0INYEYI SWOON] LSIFHILNI
OrF'zLS O ZLS ISINIONT
{11Z'98%) (Liz'ops) 'ONINNID3E
ISIHIANI AINHIDY
B08'66% B09'6ES (S1SvE HSYD) AIAIZOIY LSTAYTILNI
31v¥Q 0l AHYIINYD
HY3A 4202
SPZOL9SES 31¥0A 0L ¥Y3aA 0702
0£'509°66% ALVA OL BY3A LZ0Z
6<'609°66% LZOZ ANYNNYE SANNE TV Y10l
G OS2 arE ALYQ OL Hy3A 0202
8P ZP0'SHE ALYD GL Hy3A LEZ0T
8F TY0'ShS LZ0T ANYANYT
B ©5 INNODOY J33AS MNYE AT
00°000' LIS g40444
BL'BEO'PS OIHOUYLS

ONNd IAE3AS3N
L20Z ALY NNYT
(8ISVYE HSVD) SONINYYI LNIRLSIAN: NO 1¥0d3N
ALIHOHLNY LISNVHL TYNOID3Y GNY13AITD ¥3LYIHD



ALPENLYIN
JOVHIAY

A
%09
%540
%800
%BEL 0
%e00
a13ix
J0¥H3IAY

Yel0'0GL
%08'S
YelY L

eElse
%800
%lF L
IYLOL
20 ENIJHSd

LBB'AVE FEES ZiPPDL'RETS

DOD'099ELS OBFFLE'ELS

BOB'APLBES 808’ i¥1'8LE

S19'79¥'Z0Te oL9'Zor e0Te
g0e'08Lt 909'081%
RG6'86F'CS BSE'BEFES
INNOWY T dioNidd

30v4
bZ0Z ‘1€ AMVYNNY SY

0041804 LNJWLSIANI 30 NOILISOSNOD

DI|C)H O] JUFWISIAL] 2101
SSQNISS JUAWLALIZACS 'S
Junosoy siey Ipats sBunues
ORI |15

LnooDy daamg xueg Ao
noooy 18yiey Asuow

WA LUNIYSLY



“EOHPLLAY LE [BLQIEPPE JOj
92-0Z02 "0 UDIAr0say S350 JO QIS0 PUT $T0 209300 SAGRIISIUILIDY "[FIN0d Faael 1] AHUOARY Uske | |eutiday SuSiassp] JS1E510 211 J0 SUOKEMEEY pUe So)ny paIIpa) 1 0 §50 JadeyD oy Jajar sseay

EU “LE Y BN PEIRR ABUIGY Juag -y OO uoiidD AOSIAPY JEISUIRSIWILSY SIWIT IS0
E0-TEDT JRGLIANE MOUds EORSIWILLGY ST DIRG
DEOEZ °9 ARl patep (sdelfy (2927 - WOG) Peoyuza Ui |AMUS 0F Uil 0 ALOSDY 5R1S UDESIEEWOT TINE G0
T-UTE0-IN-E00T Ja0ary LanndQ Eso )t LOSSHULDT SIY1E oy
[3] P {QIE0TOT SUOUDES APOT PISATY Ol
‘I Uk LG UE 39 0F SEenplazp) ajqesitdde sof papinoud $2199 51 UOEwLIO U SRy L

L0
3393k [ JUer sul2i DWE
J2as13a puog UD[5aLm] JA04 Map] 3G 5UEQ
SUSLISIAL DT LS
AB3MIBRLMN
JURDIx e} 52|05 PEE JUBLIAILSY putg yueg woydnny
JUNDOY MOUaS] PIEYL U
PIEI BPE) PLB WNEITY [PIDGISAY FURE JNd
SED|AES Buppueg wew queg day
GrgsunIelas [0 3amepy WOINUYSL] JEueyld fyuey

T207 "LE ASETIMES O 57
sdiysuciejay [Epueuly pue Supueg
Apoyiny ysuesl jeuc|Sey PUBEBNaD 11850



